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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To The Members of IIFL Wealth Distribution Services Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of IIFL Wealth Distribution
Services Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (*Ind AS") and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2023, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

« The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Director’s report
is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

e Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
. the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
\\consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
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statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

e When we read the Director's report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged
with governance as required under SA 720 'The Auditor’s responsibilities Relating to
Other Information’

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
=== _\intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

: On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
N\ 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
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disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 34 to the financial
statements;

il. ~ The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. ~ (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in the note 37to the financial statements no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in the note 37 to the financial statements, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to
our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

e v.  The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year
and until the date of this report is in accordance with section 123 of the
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Act.

The interim dividend declared by the Company during the year is in
accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration
of dividend.

vi.  Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for
maintaining books of account using accounting software which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the
Company w.e.f. April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g)
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Anjum A. Qazi

(Partner)

(Membership No. 104968)
(UDIN: 23104968BGPRAH7811)

Place: May 3, 2023
Date: Mumbai



Deloitte
Haskins & SellsLLP

ANNEXURE "A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
ITIFL Wealth Distribution Services Limited) (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in
conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements based on the internal control with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with
reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the criteria
for internal financial control with reference to financial statements established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Anjum A. Qazi

(Partner)

(Membership No. 104968)
(UDIN: 23104968BGPRAH7811)

Place: May 3, 2023
Date: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the
best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i) (a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and
Equipment, capital work-in-progress and relevant details of right-of-use
assets.

(i) (a) B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment, were physically verified during the year
by the Management, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and nature of its business and no material discrepancies
were noticed on verification conducted during the year as compared with the
book records.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties and hence reporting
under clause (i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. Accordingly,
clause (i)(d), of the Order are not applicable.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against
the Company as at March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder.

(i) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company does not have any inventory and
hence reporting under clause (ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(i) (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of
time of the year, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital
facility from banks or financial institutions and hence reporting under clause
(ii){b) of the Order is not applicable.

(iii) The Company has made investments in, provided guarantee or security to and
granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the
year. With respect to such investments, guarantees or security and loans or

advances:

(a) The Company has provided loans or advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee, or provided security during the year and details of which are
given below:

Loans (Rs. in crore) Guarantees Given (Rs. in
Crore)
A) Aggregate Amount
Granted/provided during
the year
Subsidiaries Nil Nil
Joint Ventures Nil Nil
: Associates Nil Nil
m Others 187.88 Nil
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Loans (Including Guarantees Given (Rs. in
Interest) (Rs. in Crore)
crore)
B) Balance Outstanding as at
balance sheet date in
respect of above cases:
Subsidiaries Nil Nil
Joint Ventures Nil Nil
Associates Nil Nil
Others 2.15 Nil
(b) The investments made during the year are, in our opinion, prima facie, not

prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments
of principal amounts and receipts of interest are regular as per stipulation.

(d) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the
audit procedures performed, in respect of loans granted by the Company,
there is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet
date.

(e) No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has
been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of
existing loans given to the same parties.

(f) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the
audit procedures performed, the Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence,
reporting under clause (iii)(f) is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and
186 of the Act in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees, and
securities provided, as applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not accepted any depaosit or amounts deemed to be
deposits. Hence, reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central
Government under Section 148(1) of the Act, for the business activities carried out
by the Company. Hence reporting under (vi) of the Order is not applicable.

In respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Income Tax, Cess,
and other material statutory dues applicable to it, to the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, the
Employee State Insurance, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax is not applicable to the Company.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services
Tax, Provident Fund, Income Tax, Cess and any other material statutory dues
in arrears as at March 31, 2023, for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.
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(b)  There are no statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a) above which have not
been deposited on account of disputes as on March 31 2023.

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

(ix) (a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or
other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during
the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no
unutilised term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting
under clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds
raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year
for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture
during the year and hence, reporting under clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not
applicable.

(f) The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture
during the year and hence, reporting under clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable.

(x) (@) The Company has not issued any of its securities (including debt
instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or
optionally) and hence reporting under clause(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material
fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section
143 of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,
during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year and upto the date of
this report.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is in compliance with 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions
with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements, etc., as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

(xiv) (@) Inour opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with
the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during
the year and covering the period from April 1, 2022 to February 28, 2023.
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(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)
(xix)

(xx)

Place:

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or directors of its subsidiaries or persons connected with them and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the
Order is not applicable.

The Group does not have any Core Investment Company (CIC) as part of the group
and accordingly reporting under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our
audit and in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report, that Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) and there are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring
a transfer to a fund specified in the Schedule VII to the Act or special account in
compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Anjum A. Qazi

(Partner)

(Membership No. 104968)
(UDIN: 23104968BGPRAH7811)

May 3, 2023

Date: Mumbai



IIFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVECES LINITED

Cin: U4520EMK1895P1C228043
BALANCE SHEET A5 AT MARCH 3%, 2023

(%in Crore}
Particuiars Note No., As at March 31, 2023]  As at March 31, 2022 As at April 1, 2022
{Restated refer note {Restated refer note|
no.42) no:42)]
ASSETS
i Financlal Assets
{a) Cash and cash equivalents 4 B.40 3504 82.93
{b) Bank balance other than (a) above 5 21131 53168 353.05
{e} Recelvables
{1} Trade receivables 6 137.36 98.90 66.13
{11} Other receivabies 6 128.92 240,11 67.16
{d} Loans 7 2.15 8.66 .45
fel Investments 8 0.23 155.74 o.23
i Other financial assets k] 29277 190.01 147.64
2 Non-Financiat Assets
{a} Current tax assets {net} 4,21 31.87 -
1] Deferred tax assets {net} 19 - 5.69 -
{e} Property, pfant and equipment i1 1B.48 8342 11.63
{d} Capital work-in-progress 12 - 0.12 10
(e} gible assets under de v 13 31.82 -
{f tGoodwill on acquisition 14 370.18 370,18 37018
1] Other intangible aszets 15 11038 11808 126.93
{h} Right to use 16 29.60 12.89 20.56
() Other non-financial assets 17 41.24 10,11 5133
Fotat Assets 1,432.05 1,814.17 1,305.26
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
1 Financial Liabilities
3} Payables
(1) Trade payables
{i} total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
antarprises * - "
{ii} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 18
enterprises and small enterprises 63.97 96.01 33.86
(11} Qther payables
(i) rotal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smalf
entecprises - e -
{ii) tatal outstanding dues of creditors other than micre e
enterprises and small enterprises 395.58 5G7.05 320.93
ib) Finance Lease Cbligation 0 2.79 15.27 22.97
fc}  Borrowings (other than debt securities) 1% 131.34 430,38 -
1d) Other financial kabilities 6 9.33 .52 130.90
2 Non-Financial Liabilities
(3}  {Current tax liabilities {ret) - - 8.06
ibj Provisions 21 4.70 373 £.05
(e} Deferred tax liabilities {net} 10 9.63 - 2.58
id} Cther non-fingncial liabilities 22 11.3% 2349 6870
3 EQUITY
{a} Equity share capital 213 §771.32 0.3¢ [+X: 1]
] Equity shares pending allotment {Refer note no.42) - 676.82 676.62
{e) CHher equity 24 95,19 55,58 96.09
Total Liabilities and Equity 1,437.05 1514.17 1,305.26
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
In terms of our report attached of even date
-
For Beloitte Hasking & Sells Lip and an behdif of the Baaud of Directors
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Director
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Chief Financial Officer
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Company Secretary
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{IFL, WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES UMITED
CIN: W45201 MHI995PLE22R043

STATEMENT OF PROFIY AND LOS5 FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(% In Crore)
Far the year ended For the yesr ended
Particud Note No.
Adlculars oema March 33, 2023 March 31,2022}
{Restated refar note
no.42)
1 Revenue from operations
{a} Fees and commission Income 25 527.96 491.20
Total revenue from aperations 527.96 491.20
] Other Income 26 14.06 14.47
3 [Totalincome [143) SA2.02 505,67
Expenses
53] Finance casts 27 2104 1801
{b) Fees and commission expenses 1247 9643
{c) Inpairment on financial instruments 28 0.31 006
{d) Employee benefits expense 28 284.82 336.90
{e} Depreciation, amostisation and impalrment 11,15,16 26.25 2333
] Others expensus 30 58.00 84.68
4 Total expenses 443,39 §59.41
5 Profit/{Loss) before tax {3-4) 58.63 £53.74)
& Tax expense:
{a) Current tax 31 5.50 -
{b)  fDeferred tax 21 19.62 11258
7 Profit/{Loss} for the year {5-8) 73.51 {41.23)
8 Qther comgrehensive incomeftloss)
{a} {if Hem: that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of Employee Benefits (1.20) 096
{il} Income tax refating to items that will not be reclassified 1o profit
or loss 0.30 {G.24)
Subtatat {a) 0,90} 0.72
{b} (i} 1tems that will be reclassified to profit or loss.
- Foreign currency translaticn reserve - -
{ii} income tax reiating 10 iterns that will be rectassified to profitor
loss - .
Subtotal {b} . -
‘Other comprebenasive income/{loss) {a+b} {0.90) a.72
3 Tatal comprehensive inceme/f{loss} for the year (7+8) {Comprising
loss and other comprehensive Income for the year) 261 {40.51}
v Earnings per equity share
Basic (Rs.} 32 10.56 {6.09}
Difuted {Rs.} N2 10.86 (6,09}
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
in terms of our report attached of even date
[N
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP Flr and on beliglf of the Board of Directons
Chartered Accauntants
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Partner Director irector
{Membership No.104968) BN 0323305

{Diby: 01001502}
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rna n
Chief Finangial Gfficer
Place ; Mumbat Place : Mumbai
Date. May 03, 2023
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HFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U45201MH15955PLC228043
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
{® in Crore)

For the year ended March For the year ended
Particulars 31,2023 March 31, 2022
{Restated refer note
na.42}
A. Cash flows from operating actlvities
tNet prafit/loss before taxation and extraordinary item 98.63 {53.74)
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 26,25 23.33
Provisions for Employee benefits 1.97 2.42
Net changes in Fair value through Profit and loss of Investments - Realised {3.63}) {1.93)
Net changes in Fair value through Profit and Joss of Investments - Unrealised 2,19 {2.19
Impairment on financial instruments - Trade receivables 0.31 0.06
Interest Income {12.55} {10.19)
Interest expenses 15.56 13.76
Operating profit/toss before working eapital changes 128.73 {28.48)
Changes in working Capital;
Decrease/{increase) in Financial/Non-financial Assets 173,28 {305.34)
{Decrease)/tncrease in Financial/Non-financial Liabilities {133.50) 128.23
Cash generated from/{used in) operations 168.51 {205.59}
increase in Loans {net disbussed) {1.49) (0.23)
Cash generated from/{used in) operating activities 167.02 {205.80}
Net income tax (paid) {27.85) (39.93}
|net cash generated from/{used inj operating activities {A) 13917 {245.73}
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for purchase of investments {298.27} (1,333.12)
Praceeds from sate of investments 353.46 1,181.73
Net proceeds from Short term investments 10177 -
Interest income received 1L70 10.19
Fixed Deposit [placed)/matured 57.79 {75.87)
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (includes intangible assets) {48.37} {1.01)
Sale of Property, plant and equipment [includes intangibie assets} 0.0% -
{Net cash penerated from/{used in] Investing activities (B} 178.03 {218.08)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid t¢ Company's shareholders {30.00} -
intercorparate Deposit {repaid) / taken (net) {255.04} 430.38
interest Paid {15.56) {13.76)
Net cash generated from/{used In) financing activities (C) [344.640) 416.62
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) {272.34) {47.19)
Cpening Cash & cash equivalents 35.74 §2.93
Closing Cash & cash equivalents B.40 35.74
See accompanying Notes to the Financial iInformation
in terms of our report attached of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & Selis Lep ‘or and on bahs!f of thd Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

W Q*}’W Lo ‘
P w)\- % +,

Abjum A, Qazi Anu Jain Yhtin Shah
Partner Directar recta
{Membership N. 1045968} {DEN: ©1001502) iN: 03234090}
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'y B
W7
'ripama Banerjee Sen Mansi Shah
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Musmbai
Date: May €3, 2023
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Date: May 03, 2023
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HFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CiN: U45201MH1995PLC228043
Notes forming part of Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 1. Corporate Information:

ITFL Wealth Distribution Services timited (the "Company”} is a public limited company incorporated under the Companies
Act, 1956 and is a whally owned subsidiary of 360 ONE WAM timited (Formerly known as EFL Wealth Management Limited).

With an intent to consolidate and better manage operations & regulatory risks of the distribution business, 360 ONE Prime
Limited (Formerly known as HIFL. Wealth Prime Limited) {"IWPL"), IFL Wealth Capital Markets Limited {"IWCML") and HFL
Wealth Distribution Services Limited had entered into a Composite Scheme of Arrangement which was duly approved by
National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench {"NCLT"), vide its order dated January 27, 2023 ("NCLT Order”) and become
effective on March 14, 2023 {"Effective Date”) upon filing with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai.

inter alia upon the Scheme hecoming effective:

. IIFL Wealth Capital Markets Limited as a company stood amalgamated with 360 ONE Prime Limited (Formerly known
as IIFL. Wealth Prime Limited} and dissolved w.e f. Effective Date;

* The entire Distribution business of IIFL. Wealth Capital Markets Limited and 360 ONE Prime Limited (Formerly known
as liFL Weaith Prime Limited} shall stand transferred to the Company from April 1, 2021 {“the appointed date”) date for ali
future purposes,

The Financial Statements of the Company reported hereunder include the results of the aforesaid Undertaking and
Distribution business.

Note 2: Summary Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a} Statement of Compliance:

The Company’s financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with the provisiens of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS} notified under the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
amendments thereof issued by Ministry of Corperate Affairs in exercise of the powers conferred by section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013. In addition, the guidance notes/announcements issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of
india (ICAl) are also applied except where compliance with other statutory promulgations require & different treatment. These
financials statements have been approved for issuance by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on May 3, 2023.

b} Basis of preparation and restriction of use:

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis and are presented in Indian Rupees (INR). All values
are rounded to the nearest crores, except when otherwise indicated.

¢) Presentation of Financial Statement:

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liguidity in compliance with the Division 1l of the Schedule Iit to the
Companies Act, 2013. An analysis regarding recovery or setflement within 12 months after the reporting date {current} and
more than 12 months after the reporting date (non-current) is presented in Note 37 to 39.

d} Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when the prornised goods and services are transferred to the customer i.e. when performance
obligations ave satisfied. Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties.




HFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U45201MH1995PLC228043
Notes forming part of Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 {continued)

The Company applies the five-step approach for the recognition of revenue:

i Identification of contracts with the customers: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more
parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be
met.

i, tdentification of the separate perfarmance obligation in the contract: A perfarmance obligation is a promise in
a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

iH. Determination of transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration te which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.

iv. Alacation of transaction price to separate performance obligation: For a contract that has mare than one
performance obligation, the Corapany aliocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an
amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
satisfying each performance obligation.

V. Recognition of revenue when (or as) each performance obligation is satisfied

The following is a description of principal activities from which the Company generates its revenue.

Fees for Manpower Services and Commission income: Commission income and fees for Manpower services are recognised
at a point in time when the service obligations are completed and when the terms of contracts are fulfilled.

Fees and commission relating to Distribution Services: Fees on distribution services are recognised at a point in time when
the service obligations are completed and when the terms of contracts are fulfitled.

e) Property, plant and equipment

Measurement at recognition:

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at its cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment separately, if the part
has a costwhich is significant to the total cost of that item of property, plantand equipment and has usefut iife that is materially
different from that of the remaining item,

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price including import duties and other non-
refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use
and the initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade discounts and rebates are
deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition
criteria are met. Expenses related to plans, designs and drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalised under
relevant heads of property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

Capital work In pregress and Capital advances:

Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the Balance Sheet date, is shown as capital wark in progress. Advances given
towards acquisition of Property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date are disclosed as Other Non-
Financial Assets.

Depreciation

Depreciation on each item of property, plant and equipment is provided using the Straight-Line Method based on the useful
lives of the assets as estimated by the management and is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Significant components
of assets identified separately pursuant to the requirements under Schedule I of the Companies Act, 2013 are depreciated
separately over their useful life.




HFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U45201MH1995PLC228043
Notes forming part of Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 {continued)

Freehold land is not considered as depreciable assets having regard to its infinite useful life. Individual assets/ group of similar
assets costing up to Rs. 5,000 has been depreciated in full in the year of purchase. Laasehold improvements are to he amortised
over the life of asset or period of iease whichever is shorter.

Estimated useful life of the assets is as under:

Class of assats uUseful life in years
Computers 3

Electrical Equipment* 5-10

Office equipment 5

Furniture and fixtures* K 5-10

Alr canditioners* 5

* For this class of assets, based on internal assessment and independent technical evaluation carried out by externat valuers,
the management believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to
use these assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of
Scheduie Il of the Act.

# Furaiture and fixtures includes leasehold improvemaents, which is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the period of lease

The usefut lives, residual values of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment and the depreciaticn methods are
reviewed at the end of each financial year. If any of these expectations differ from previous estimates, such change is accounted
for as a change in an accounting estimate.

Derecognition:

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and
equipment is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the item is derecognised.

f} Intangible assets

Measurement at recognition: intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Intangible
assets arising on acquisition of business are measured at fair value as at date of acquisition. Fallowing initial recognition,
intangible assets with finite useful life are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment loss, if any.
Intangibie assets with indefinite useful lives, that are acquired separately, are carried at cost/fair value at the date of
acquisition less impairment loss, if any.

Amortisation:
intangible Assets with finite lives are amortised on a Straight-Line basis over the estimated useful economic jife. The
amaortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The amortisation pertod and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with finite useful life is reviewed at the end of
each financial year. If any of these expectations differ from previous estimates, such change is accounted for as a change in an

accounting estimate

Estimated useful economic life of the assets is as under:

Class of assets Useful life in years
Software 3-7
Customer Relaticnships 20




HFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U45201MHMH1995PLE228043
Notes forming part of Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 {continued}

Cerecognition:

The carrying amount of an intangible asset is deracognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an intangible asset is measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangible asset and is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

g) impairment

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, such as goodwill, are tested for impalrment annually and whenever there is an
indication that the asset may be impaired. Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed for
impairment, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that carrying amount may not be recoverable. Such
circumstances include, though are not limited to, significant or sustained decline in revenues or earnings and material adverse
changes in the econamic envirgnment.

An impairment foss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit [CGU) exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less cost to sell and value in use. To
calculate value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market rates and the risk specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent
cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. Fair value less cost to sell is the
best estimate of the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm's ength transaction between knowledgeable,
willing parties, less the cost of dispesal. impairment losses, if any, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and
included in depreciation and amortisation expenses.

Impairment fosses are reversed i the Statement of Profit and Loss only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had previously been recognised.

b} Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liabifity or equity instrument
of another entity.

« Financial assets
initial recognition and measurement;

The Company recognises a financial asset in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All financiai assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.
However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price.

Subseguent measurement:
For subsequent measurement, the Company classifies a financial asset in accordance with the Company’s business model for
managing the financial asset and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Based on the above criteria, the Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories:
i. Financial assets measured at amortised cost

ii. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH)

Hi. Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss {FVTPL)




IIFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CHN: U45201MH1995PLC228043
Notes forming part of Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 {continued)

i. Financial assets measured at amortised cost;
A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

= The Company’s business model abjective for managing the financial asset is to hold financial assets in arder to collect
contractual cash flows, and

* The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

il. Financial assets measured at FVTOCI:
A Debt Instrument is measured at FVTGG if both of the following conditions are met:

= The Company’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets, and

= The contractual tarms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For the above categary, income by way of interest and dividend, provision for impairment are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss and changes in fair value {other than on account of above income or expense} are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumutated in other equity. On disposal of such debt instruments at FYTOC financial assets, the
cumudative gain or loss previously accumulated in other equity is reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity Instrument at FYTOCI: Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the issuer's
perspective; that is, instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in
the issuer’s net assets. On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument by instrument
basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity
instraments. This election is not permitted if the instrument is held for trading. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified
to the Statement of Profit and Less an disposal of the investment.

iti. Financial assets measured at FVTPL:

A financial asset is measurad at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOC! as mentioned above. This is a
residual category appiied to all other investments of the Company excluding investments in associate Such financiat assets are
subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value changes are racognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Fair Value

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies mentioned above. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The falr value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the tiability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principat market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or tiability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statemants are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy that categorises into three levels, described as foliows. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority
to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities {Leve! 1 inputs} and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs {Level 3 inputs).
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IFFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U45201MH1995P1LC228043
Notes forming part of Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 {continued)

Level 1 — quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — inputs other thana quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
of indirectly

Level 3 —inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whethar transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation at the end of each
reporting period and discloses the same.

Derecognition:
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets} is derecognised
(i.e. rermoved from the Company's Batance Sheet) when any of the following cecurs:

The contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset expires;

The Company transfers its contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset and has substantially transferred
alt the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset;

The Company retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash
flows without material delay to one or more recipients under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement (thereby substantialiy
transferring all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset}:

The Caxmpany neither transfers nor retains, substantiatly all risk and rewards of awnership, and does not retain control
over the financial asset.

On Derecognition of a financial asset, (except as mentioned in i above for financiat assets measured at FVTOCH), the
difference betwean the carrying amount and the consideration received is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairmaent of financiat assets:

The Company recognises loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) mode! for the financial assets which are not
measured at FVTPL. Expected credit losses are measured at an armount equal to the 12-month ECL, uniess there has been a
significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at fifetime ECL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit tosses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
Creditloss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive {i.e. all cash shortfalls}, discounted at the ariginal effective
interest rate. The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument,

The Company measures the foss allowance on financial assets at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses i
the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. i the credit risk on a financial
asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial
asset at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the lifetime
expected credit lnsses and represent cash shortfalls that will result if default cccurs within the 12 months weighted by the
probability of default after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months,

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring aver the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the
change in the amount of expected credit fosses. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable infarmation, that is available without undue
cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
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The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recagnition of impairment loss aflowance on trade receivables. The application
of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initiaf recognition. The Company uses a pravision
matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically
observed default rates over the expected fife of the receivables. However, if receivables contain a significant financing
component, the Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure the loss allowance by applying general approach to
measure ECL.

The Company writes off a financiai asset when there is information indicating that the obligor is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

» Financial Liabilities and Equity {nstruments:

Financial Instruments issued by the entity are classified are either as financial lizhilities or as equity instruments in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definition of a financial liability and an equity. An
equity instruments is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabifities.

tnitial recognition and measurement:

The Company recognises a financial liability in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Having regards to the terms and structure of issuance, Finarcial Liahilities are categorised as follows:

{i) recognised at amortised cast

{ii} recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) including the embedded derivative component if any, which is not
separated.

(i) An embedded derivative is a cormponent of a hybrid instrument that alse includes a non-derivative host contract with the
effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a standalone derivative An
embedded derivative causes saome or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be
modified according to a specified interest rate, foreign exchange rate, or other variable, provided that, in the case of a
non-financial variable, it is not specific to a party to the contract. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are
accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not elosely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts sre not held for trading or designated at fair value though
profitor loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments,

Subsequent measurement:

i. All financial liabilities of the Company are categorised at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective
interest method.

ii. All financial liabilities of the Company are categorised at fair value are subsequently measured at fair vaiue through profit
and loss statement,

iii. For derivatives embedded in the liability, the embedded derivative is subsequently measured at fair value through profit
and foss and the liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methed.

Derecognition: A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires.

j} Foreign Currency Translation

These financial statements are presented in indian Rupees, which is the Company's functional currency.
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initial Recognition:

On initial recognition, transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are recorded in the functional
currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount, the spot exchange rate between the functionat currency and the
foraign currency at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during
the year are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Measurement of foreign currency items at reporting date:

Foreign currency monetary items of the Company are translated at the closing exchange rates. Non-monetary items that are
measured at historical cost in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction,
Nonmonetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is measured.

Exchange differences arising out of these translations are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
k) income Taxes

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current tax
and deferred tax,

Current tax:

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for a period, Taxable profit differs from ‘profit
before tax’ as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible in accordance with applicable tax laws. Current tax is measured
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax:
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit under income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax Habilities are generally recognised for ail taxable temporary differences. in case of temporary differences that
arise from initial recognition of assets or Habitities in a transaction (other than business combination) that affect neither the
taxabie profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax Fabilities are not recognised, Also, for temgorary differences that arise
from initial recognition of goodwili, deferred tax lisbilities are not recognised.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for ali deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable that taxable

profits will be available against which those deductible temperary difference can be utilised. In case of temporary differences
that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction {other than businass combination) that affect neither

the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax assets are not recognised.

Detferred tax assets are also recognised with respect to carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the
extent that it is probabie that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses and unused tax
credits car be utilised, it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which a deductible temparary difference,
unused tax loss or unused tax credit can be utilised when there are sufficient taxable temporary differences which are
expected to reverse in the period of reversal of deductible temporary difference or in periods in which a tax loss can be
carriad forward or back. When this is not the case, deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent it is probable that:

(i} the entity witl have sufficient taxable profit in the same period as reversal of deductible temporary difference or pericdsin
which a tax loss can be carried forward or back; or
(i) tax ptanning opportunities are available that will create taxable profit in appropriate periods.
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Ir case of temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction [other than business
combination) that affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tex assets are not recognised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no fonger probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the benefits of part or all of such deferred tax
assets to be utifised.

Deferred tax assets{net} and liahilities(net) are measured at the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected 10 be recovered or settled.

Presentation of current and deferred tax:

Current and deferred tax are recognised as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in Gther Comprehensive Income, in which case, the current and deferred tax
income/expense are recognised in Other Camprehensive Income.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a fegally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the Company has a legally
enforceable right to set off corresponding current tex assets against current tax liabitities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the Company. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises fram the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

I} Provisions and Contingencies

The Company recognises provisions when a present obligation {legal or constructive) 2s a result of a past event exists and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embedying economic benefits will be required to settle such obligation and the ameunt
of such obligation can be reliably estimated.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the abligation. Whan a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material). A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there
is a possible obligation or a present abligation that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits or the amount of such obligation cannot be measured reltably. When there is a possible obligation ora
present obligation in respect of which likefihood of outffow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no
provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may
never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the refated asset is not a contingent
asset and is recognised.

m} Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash and cheques in hand, bank balances, demand
deposits with banks where the original maturity is three months or less.
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nj Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits:

All empioyee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term emplayee
benefits and they are recognised in the peried in which the employee renders the related service. The Company recognises
the undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered as a
liabHity {accrued expense) after deducting any amount already paid.

Compensated Absences

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their annual leave entitlement to
subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises the charge in the Statement of Profit and Loss and
corresponding liability on such non- vesting accurulated leave entitfernent based on a valuation by an independent actuary.
The cost of providing annual leave benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Post-Employment Benefits:
{1} Defined contribution plans:

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Company pays fixed contributions into
state managed retirement benefit schemes and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions,
if any, if the state managed funds do not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee services
it the current and preceding financial years. The Company’s contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss in the financial year to which they relate. The Company operates defined contribution
plans pertaining to Government administered Pension Fund Scheme for ali applicable employees and the Company also
operates Defined Contribution Plans pertaining t¢ Provident Fund Scheme.

Recognition and measurement of defined contribution plans;

The Company recognises contribution payabie to a defined contribuifon pfan as an expense in the Statement of Profit and
Lass when the employees render services to the Company during the reporting period. i the contributions payable for
services received from employees before the reporting date exceeds the contributicns already paid, the deficit payable is
recognised as a lability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
cantribution due for services received before the reporting date, the excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the
prepayment wili lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund.

It. Defined benefit plans:

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan, for employees. The Company makes annual contributions to
funds administered by trustees and managed by a financial institution, towards meeting the Gratuity obligations.

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit plans;

The cost of providing defined benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method with actuarial valuations
being carried out at each reporting date. The defined benefit obligations recognised in the Balance Sheet represent the
present vatue of the defined benefit obligations as reduced by the fair value of plan assets, if appticable. Any defined
benefit asset {negative defined benefit obligations resulting from this calculation} is recognised representing the present
value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan.

All expenses represented by current service cost, past service cost if any and net interest on the defined benefit liability
{asset) are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset)
comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on the plan assets {exciuding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit Hability/asset), are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. Such remeasurements are not
reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the subsequent periods.
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o) Lease accounting

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at the inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease
i the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for 2 peried of time in exchange for consideration, To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company considers whether {i) the
contract invoives the use of identified asset; (ii} the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the
asset through the period of lease and (iif) the Company has right to direct the use of the asset,

As afessee

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date, The right-of-use asset is
initialty measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the tease liability adjustad for any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or te restore the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

Certain fease arrangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. Where
appropriate, the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain that the option will
be exercised.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier
of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset ar the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use
assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. in addition, the right-of-use asset is
periodicaily reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the fease liability.

The lease liabi ty is initially measured at the present vatue of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicitin the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's incremental
borrowing rate. Geaerally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprises of fixed payments, including in-substance fixed
payments, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and the exercise price under a purchase option
that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period i the Company is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company's estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if Company changes its assessment of whether it
will exercise a purchase, extension or termination opfion.

When the lease lability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying ameunt of the right-of-
use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Lease liability and the right of use asset hava been separately presented in the balanze sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing activities.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and ease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease term
of less than or equal to 12 months with no purchase option and assets with low value leases, The Company recognises the
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense in statement of profit and loss over the lease term. The related
cash flows are classified as operating activities.
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As a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as finance or operating leases. When the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance iease. All other leases
are ciassified as operating leases, The Company recognises income on operating leases based on the contractual arrangements.

Critical accounting estimate and judgement

i) Determination of lease term

Ind AS 116 Leases requires lessee to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any
option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain, The Company makes assessment on
the expected lease term on lease by lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any optians to
extend or terminate the contract will be exercised.

i} Discount rate

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfalio
of leases with similar characteristics.

p) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costincludes interest, amortisation of transaction costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings
and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the
interest cost. Borrowing costs, if any, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
nacessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised, if any. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

g} Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for alfocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments of the Company.

r} Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders {after
deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributabie to equity shareholders
(after deducting attributable taxes) and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year are
adjusted for the effects of ali dilutive potential equity shares, Potentiz| equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their
conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive
equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. The
difutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value {i.e.
average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each
period presented.

s} Business Combination

Business Combination under common control are accounted under “the pooling of interest method” i.e. in accordance with
Appendix C in Ind AS 103 - Business combinations, at carrying amount of assets and liabilities acquired and any excess of
consideration issued over the net assets acquired is recognised as capital reserve on common controt business combination.
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Note 3: Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparaticn of the Company’s financial statements requires the management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and fiabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty abaut these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a materiaf adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or Habilities affected in future periods,

Judgments: The following are the key accounting judgments that the management has used:
i. Property, Plant and Equipment

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and
the expected residual value at the end of its life. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets and are
based on changes in technical or commercial obsolescence.

ii. Defined Benefit Obligation

The costs are assessed on the basis of assumptions selected by the management. These assumptions include salary
escalation rate, discount rates, expected rate of return on assets and mortality rates.

iti. Significant increase in credit risk

ECL s measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage  assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets, An
asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. In assessing whether the credit
risk of an asset has significantly increased the Company takes into account quatitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information.

Estimates and assumptions: The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
fiabitities within the next financial year, are described below:

i. Fair Value of Financlal instrument

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received ta sell an asset or paid to transfer 2 liability in an
orderly transaction in the principal {or most advantagecus) market at the measurement date under curreat market
conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardiess of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technigue, When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived
frem active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models.
The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is
required in establishing fair values.

it. Impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets reguires judgment, in particular, the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash fiows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can
resuit in different levels of allowances.
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The Company's ECL calculations ace outputs of madels with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice of
variable inputs and thelr interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgments and
estimates include:

* PD calculation includes historical data, assurmptions and expectations of future conditions.
fii. Accounting for deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised, Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The Company has recognised deferred tax assets on carried forward tax losses with respect to certain
subsidiaries where the Company beligves that the said deferred tax assets shall be recoverable based on the estimated future
taxable income which in turn is based on approved business plans and budgets. The losses are aliowed to be carried forward
to the years in which the Company expects that there will be sufficient taxable profits to offset these losses.

Note 3.1: Standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corperate Affairs (“MCA"} notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rutes as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023,
applicable from April 1, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 ~ Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting
policies. Accounting policy information, together with other information, ts material when it can reasonably be exgected to
influence decisions of primary users of generat purpose financial statements. The Company does not expect this amendment
to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12
(recognition exemption} so that it no fonger applies to transactions that, on iritial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible termporary differences. The Company is evaluating the impact, if any, in its financial statements.

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a
change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition,
accounting estimates are “rnonetary amounts in financiat statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. Entities
develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that
involves measurement uncertainty. The Company does nat expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its
financial statements.
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Note 4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

[ in Crore)

As at April 1, 2021

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 [Restated refer note
no. 4}

Lash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand 0.01 0.02 0.02
Balance with banks

- Current accounts B.39 35.72 82.91
Cash and eash equivalents 8.40 35.74 §2.93
flote 5. Bank Balance other than 3 above: {Xin Crore}

As at April 1, 2021

Particuiars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 {Restated refer note
no.42}
QOther Bank Balances
in Earmarked Accounts 39.02 302.45 195,69
In Deposit accouats {with original maturity of more than 3 maonths) 170.84 228.63 152.60
Interest acerued on fixed deposits 1.45 0.60 0.76
Total 211.31 531.68 353.05
Cut of the Fixed Deposits shown above:
As at April 4,
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 2021{Restated rafer
note no.42}
Lien marked against bank guarantee 131.59 125.58 132.13
Lien marked against overdratt facility - - 5.00
Coilaterat with exchange 39.25 100.60 11.61
Other deposits - 245 3.86
interest accrued on fixed deposits 1.45 0.60 0.76
‘Total 172.29 229.23 153.36




a)

b}
¢}
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Note 6. Receivables {Xin Crore}
As at April 1,
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 2021{Restated refer
note no.42}
{i) Trade receivables
Receivables considered good - Secured - - -
Receivables considered good - Unsecured 137.36 98.90 66.15
Receivables - credit impaired 0.59 Q.28 0.25
Total {i)- Gross 137.95 $9.18 66.40
Less: Impairment loss allowance {0.59) {0.28} {0.25)
Total {i)- Net 137.38 98.90 66.15
{ii} Other receivables
Receivables considered good - Secured 128,92 240.11 67.16
Receivables considered good - Unsecured - - -
Total {ii}- Grass 128.92 240.11 67.16
Less: impairment loss allowance - - -
Total {li)- Net 128.92 240.11 67.16

No trade or other receivables are due from directers or from other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any

ather person ror any trade or other receivables are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any directors is a
partner, director or a member as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 and Aprit 1, 2021.
No trade receivabies and otker receivables are interest bearing.
The Company has adopted simplified approach for impairment allowance. Expected Credit Loss {"ECL") has been recognised for

credit impaired trade receivables
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Trade receivables ageing schedule {or the year ended March 31, 2023 {%in Crome}
Particylars Qutstanding for tollnwing periads from due date of payment

Less than B monihs | Gmonths-1yaar | L-Zyears | 2-3ysars | Mosothan 3 years | Unbilted revenue Totat
{l) Undisputed Trade receivahies - considered good 3437 14.85 £.59 199 - 79.16 137.36
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase . _ . _ R B B
I credit risk
(i} Undizputed Trade receivables - ¢redit impaired - D.24 .07 £.28 - - 053
{iv} Dispuled Trade receivabies - considered goad u - - - - - -
() Disputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase in . . N _ . ~ R
credit risk
{vi) Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired . . - - . - -
1£45! lmpairment loss allowance - £0.24) {02} 0.2 - . {0.59)
Net veceivible as at March 31, 2023 34.37 14.8% 6,99 1.95 - 75.16 137.36

Trade receivables ageing sthedtle for the year ended March 3§, 1022

Particulars Outstanding for following pertads from due date of payment
Less than 6 months [ Smonths- 1year | T-2yams | 2-3yeass | More than ¥ years | Unbilled revenue Tatat
{i} Undisputed Trade receivables - cansidered good 89.08 4.93 2.72 217 - - 93,90
{if) Undisputed Trade receivables - which have significant Increase . . _
tin credit sk T
Undi d Tradu receivables - teedit impaired - .03 Q.25 - - - 28
{iv] Disputed Trade seceivables - onsidered good - ~ - - - - -
(v} Disputed Trade receivables - which have significant Increase in R . _
credit rigk -
{vi) Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaiced - - - - - . -
Less: Impairment legs allowance - (0.03} 10.25} - " - {o.28)
Net recelvable a5 at March 31, 2022 29.08 4.93 2.72 2.17 D - 93.9¢
Trade recelvables ageing schedule for the yest ended Agril 1, 20. d refer note ne.42)
Particulars Qutstanding for following perlods from due date of payment
Less than 6 months | Emonths-1year | 1-Zyears § I-3years | More than 3 years | tnbliied sevenue Total
{i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 49,67 10.72 5.19 057 - . 56.15

{ii} Undisputad Trade receivables - which have significant increase

kin £redir risk ) ) . ) 3 ; )

{iii) Undisputed Trade recenvables » creditimpaired - 0.24 - - - - 0.2
v} Di d T-ade receivables - idered good - - - - - . -
{v) Disputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase in

ceedit yisk ) ) ) ) ) :
(wi} Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - - - . - - .
Lesy: impairment loss aflowance - £0.24) . - - - {024}

Net receivable asat Aprit 1, 2021 49.43 10.72 5.19 0.57 - - 56,15




iIFI WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED

CiN; V45201 MHE995PLC228043

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 7. Loans {X in Crore)
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at April 1, 2021{Restated refer note
no.42)
toans
Amartised cost Total Amortised cost Total Amortised cost Total
ta)
{i} Loans repayable on demaad - - - . N N
i) Inter Corporate Qeposits and
Interest or ICD {Refer note ho.36) £.91 .91 0.01 0.0% - -
{iit} Others - Staff loan 1.24 1.24 0,65 0.65 0.45 0.45
Totat {A) -Gross 2.15 2.15 0.66 1.66 0.45 0.45
Less:impairment loss aliowance - - - - - -
Total {A} - Net 2.15 2,15 0.66 0.66 0.45 0.45
{8}
{i} Secured by tangible assets - N _ N T T
{ii)Secured by intangible assets - - - - -
{iii} Covered by S8ank/Government
Guzarantees
{i} Unsecured 2.15 1,15 0.66 D.66 .45 0.45
Less: Impairment loss allowance - - - - - -
Total [B}-Net 2.15 2.15 0.66 0.66 0.45 0.45
ic}
{1} Loans In India 2,15 215 0.66 0.66 0.45 .45
Less: Impairment loss aliowance - - - - - “
Total{C) {1}-Net 7.15 2.15 0.66 0.66 0.45 0.45
{H]Loans outside India - - . A N N
Less: Impairment joss zllowance - - - - - .
Total {C} {H}- Net - N N N ” -
Total Cit) 2nd C(1) 2.15 2.15 0.66 0.65 0.45 0.45
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 AsatApril, 2"?:2;;“"’" refer note
Amount of loan or| Percentage to the | Amount of loan or | Percentage 1o the [ Amount of loanor] Percentage to the
Type of Borrower
advance inthe | totafloans and advance in the total loans and advance in the totaf loans and
nature of loan | advancesin the nature of loan advances In the nature of joan advances in the
autstanding nature of loans outstanding nature of loans outstanding nature of loans
Proroter - - - - - -
Directors - - - - - -
KMPs - - - - - -
Reiated parties (Refer note no.35) 0.51 42.33% 0,01 1.52% - -
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ilFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U45201MH1995PLC228043

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 9. Other financial assets {Xin Crore}
As at April 1

t March 31, ’

Particutars As st March31,2023] %2 ) 0;;‘ 2021(Restated
refer note no.42)
Deposit with exchange 218.78 138.73 88.08
Other deposits 7.94 6.94 7.29
income accrued & due 45.95 34.31 35.23
Advances to group company {Refer note no.36) 20.10 10.03 16.86
Others - - 0.18
Totat 292.77 190.01 147.64




HFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CiN: U45201MiH1995PLC228043

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 10. Deferred Taxes

Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2023 are as follows:

{Xin Crore)
Recognised Recognised
Opening in profit or in/reclassified |Closing
balance loss from QC} balance
Deferred tax assets:
Ditference between book base and tax base
of property, plant & equipment and intangible
assets {9.12) {2.47) - {11.59)
Carried forward tax losses 20.48 {20.48) - -
impairment of Assets 0.01 (.08 - 0.09
Retirement benefits for employees 0.90 {0.09) 0,30 1.11
tmpact of IndAS 116 {1.97} 2.73 - 0.76
Total deferred tax assets {A) 10.30 {20.23) 0.30 {9.63)
Unrealised profit on investments etc. 0.61 {0.61) - -
Total deferred tax liabilities (B) 0.61 {0.61) - -
Deferred tax assets/{liabilities) (A - B) 9.69 {19.62) 0.30 {9.63)

Significant components of deferred tax assets and labilities for the year ended March 31, 2022 are as follows:

{Xin Crore}
Opening
balance Recognised Recognised
{Restated refer {in profit or infreciassified jClosing
note no.42) loss from OCl halance
Deferred tax assets:
Difference between book base and tax base
of property, plant & equipment and Intangible
assets {4.28) {4.84) - (9.12)
Carried forward tax losses - 20.48 - 20.48
Impairment of Assets - 0.01 - 0.01
Retirement benefits for employees 1.52 {D.38) {0.24) 0.90
Impact of IndAS 116 Q.23 {2.20) - {1.97)
Total deferred tax assets {A) {2.53) 13.07 {0.24} 10.30
Unrealised profit on investments etc. 0.05 0.56 - 0.6%
Total deferred tax liabilities (B) 0.05 0.56 - 0.61
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (A - B} {2.58}) 12.51 {0.24) 8.69
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H#IFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CiN: U45201MH1995PLC2 28043

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

ivote 12, Capital Work-in-Progress:

As at March 31, 2023

{Rin Crore)

Particulars As at March 31, 2023
As at April 1, 2022 312
Additions -
Detfetions 0.12
As at March 31, 2023 -
As at March 31, 2022
Particulars As at March 31, 2022
As at April I, 2021 {Restated refer note no.42) 1.02
Adgitions 0.12
Deletions 1.02
As at March 31, 2022 0.12
Capital Work-in-Progress ageing schedule for the year ended March 31, 2023 % in Crore)
[ Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Projects in progress - - . . R
Projects temporarily suspended . - . . .
Capital Work-in-Progress completion schedule for the vear ended March 31, 2023 {% in Crore)
cwip To be completed In Total
Less than 1 year 1-X years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Preject in progress - - - - -
Project temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total - . . R ~
Capital Work-in-Progress ageing schedule for the year ended March 31, 2022 (X in Crore)

CWIP Amount in CWIP for 2 period of Total
Less than 1 year 1.2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Projects in progress 0.12 - - - 0.12
Lapital Wark-in-Progress c ion schedule for the year ended March 31, 2022 {%in Crore}
WP To be tompleted in Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 years
Praject in progress 0.12 - - “ 0.12
Total 0.12 - - - 0.1z

Capital Waork-in-Progress ageing schedule for the year ended April 1, 2021{Restated refer note no.42)

{Xin Crore)

cwip Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Projects in progress .02 - - - i.02
Capital Work-in-Progress campletion schedule for the year ended Aprit 1, 2021{Restated refer note no.42) X in Crore)
cwip To be completed In Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Maore than 3 years
Project in progress 1.02 - - - 1.02
Total 1.02 - - - 1.02




IHFLWEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CiN: UAS201MHI995PLC228043
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 13. Intangibles Under Development:

{X In Crore}
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars As 3t March 31, 2023
As at April 3, 2022 -
Additions 3:.82
Deletions -
As at March 31, 2023 31.82
As at March 31, 2022
Particulars As at March 31, 2022
As at April 1, 2021 [Restated refer note no.42) -
Additions -
Deletions .
As at March 31, 2022 -
intangibles Under Development ageing schedule for the year ended March 31, 2023 {% In Crore}
CWIP Amaount tn CWIP for 3 period of Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Prajects in progress 31.82 - - - 31.82
Projects temporarify suspended - - - - -
¥ gibes Under Develop completion schedule for the year ended March 31, 2023 {% In Crore)
Cwip Vo be completed in Toral
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2.3 yoars More than 3 years
Praject - DSE Mid Market 29.31 - - - 29.31
Project - RSL Others 251 - M - 2.51
Total 31.82 - - - 31.82
gibles Under lopment ageing schedule for the year ended March 31, 2022 {X In Croraj
Partlcutars A ink gibie under develop t for a period of Total
Less than 1 year i-2 years 2-3 years Maore than 3 years
Projects in progress " - - - .
Projects temporarily suspended - - - . -
Intangibles Under Development completion schedulr for the year ended March 31, 2022 {2 In Crore}
Particulars Amaount in Intanglble under development for a period of Yotal
Less than 1 year 1-2years 2-3 years Muore than 3 years
Project in progress - - - - -
Project temporarily suspended - v - - -
[ glbles Under Bevelop ageing schedule for the year ended April 1, 2021{Restated refer note ne.42} {% In Crore}
Particutars Amount in ntangible under development lor a period of Totat
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 yeass Mare than 3 years
Projects in progress - - - - -
Projects tempararily suspended - . . - -
intangthlas Undar Development completion scheduls for the year ended April 1, 2021{Restated refer note no.42) {%in Crore}
Particutars Amount in Intangible under development for 2 period of Total
iess than 1 year 1-2 years 2.3 yoars More than 3 years
Project in progress . - - - .
Project temporarily suspended - . - . .
Note 14, Goodwill on acqulstion
A sunumary of changes in the carrying amount of goodwill i as follows:
Particulars As at March 31, 2023
As at Aprif 1, 2022 370.18
Goodwilf on business acquisition .
As at March 31, 2023 370.18
Particulars As at March 31, 2022
As at Aprif 1, 2021 {Restated refer note no.42) 370.18
Goodwilk on business acquisition .
As at March 31, 2022 37018




IFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U45201MH1535PLC228043

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 15. Other Intanglble Assets {X in Crore)
Particulars Software Customer Relations Total
Softwares/Customer Relations
Gross Biock as on Aprit 1, 2022 15,18 131.72 146.90
Additions 1.52 - 1.52
As at March 31, 2023 16.70 131.72 148.42
Accurnuiated amortisation
Upto April 1, 2022 10.92 17.93 28.84
Amortisation for the year 2.60 6.59 9.19
Upto March 31, 2023 13,52 24.52 38.04
Net Block as at March 31, 2023 3,18 107.20 110.38
Farticulars Software Customer Relations Total
Softwares/Customer Relations
Gross Block as on April 1, 2021{Restated refer note no.42) 14.50 131.72 146.87
Additions 0.68 - 0.68
As at March 31, 2022 15,18 131.72 147.55
Accumulated amortisation
Upto April 1, 2021{Restated refer note no.42) 7.95 11.34 19.94
Amortisation for the year 2.97 6.59 9.56
Upto March 31, 2022 10.92 17.93 29.50
Neat Block as at March 31, 2022 4.26 113.79 118.65
6.55 120.38 126.93

Net Block as at April 1, 2021{Restated refer note no.42)




AIFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CiN: U45201MH1955PL (228043

NOVES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 16, DHsclosure Pursuant to ind AS 116 "Leases"

{%1In Crore)

Following ate the thanges in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2023

Particular Premisest Vehicles Total
Balance as at 2 April, 2022 10.78 2,11 12,83
Additlons duzring the year 23.62 5.16 878
Depreciation charge tor the year (10.51) {1.47) {11.98)
Deletions during the year {0.03} {0.06) (0.09)
Halance as at March 31, 2023 2346 5.74 29.60
Following are the thanges in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars Premi: Vehicles| Total

Bakance s at 1 Aprll, 2021{Restated refer note no.42}) 18.82 1.74 20.56
Additions during the year 2.41 1.78 4,19
Depreciation charge for the year {8.04) {1.30} (9.34)
Qeletions during the year {2.41) {8.11) {2.52)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 16.78 211 12.89
The following is the movement In lease Habiities during the year ended March 31, 2023
{Particulars Premises wehictes| Total

Balance as at 1 April, 2022 13.03 2.24 15.27
Additions 23.5% 5.13 2B.72
Deletion {0.03) {0.19) {0.13}
Finance fost accrued during the year 217 LE 247
Payment of lease llabillties {11.84) (1.70) {13.54}
Balance as at March 31, 2023 26.92 5.87 32.79]
The foliowing is the movement In lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2022

Particutars Premlses Vehicles| Yotal

Bakance as at 1 April, 2021{Restated refer note no.42) 21.03 1.94 2297
Additions 2.4) 1.78 4192
Deletion {1.57) {o.12} {2.69}
Finance cost accrued during the year 1.46 0.17 1.63
Payment of lease liabiitles {9.30) {1.53} {10.83)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 13.03 2.24 15.27
Following is the break up value of the Current and Non - Cufrent Lease X in Crare)
Liabifitjgs for the year ended March 31, 2023

Particelars Pramises Vehides As at March 31,

2023

Current lease liabilities 891 178 10.69
Non-current lease liabilities 1801 4.09 22.10
Total 26,92 5.87 32.79
Foliowing Is the break up value of the Current and Non - Current Lease

Lighilities for the year ended March 31, 2022

tParticulars Premises Vehicles As at Margh 31,

2022

Curegnt lease liabilities £.75 0.98 7.73
MNon-currant fease liabilities 6.28 1.26 7.54
Total 13.063 .24 15.27
Following s the break up value of the Current and Non - Current Lease

Liabilities for the year ended April 1, 2021{Restated refer nate no.42})

Particulars Asataprilz,

Premises Vehicles | 2022{Restated refer

Carrent lease liabilities 8.42 1.23 9,65
Nonr-current lease liabilities 12.61 0.71 13.32
Tatal 2103 1.94 22.97




(L WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U45201MH1955PL226043

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAE STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Maturity analysis — contractual undiscounted cash flows

Particulars Premises, Vehicles| As at March 31,
2023
Less than one year 10.47 2.18 12.65
One to five years 19.77 4.53 34.30
More than five years 0.33 - 0.33
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at 31 March 2023 20.57 6.7 37.28
Lease lizbilities Included in the statement of financial position at 31 26.92 547 32.79
[March 2023
Particulars Premises Vehicles|  Asat March 31,
2022
Lass than one year 7.50 1.34 8.64
Qne o five years 6.58 1.39 7.97
Move than five years 0.34 - 0.34
Total undiscounted lease Habilities at 31 March 2022 14.42 2,53 16.95
Lease liabilitles included in the statement of finandal position at 31
haarch 2622 13,03 2.24 15.27
Partitulars Premises: Vehicles Asat April 1,
2021 {Restated refer
1055 than one year 9.84 1.35 1119
One to five years 13.34 0.76 14,10
More than five years D.53 - 0.53
Yotal undiscounted lease lakilities at 3 March 2021 23.71 211 25.82
Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position at 32
|March 2021 2103 1.94 22.97
Amounts recognised in profit or loss
[Particulars As at March 31, As at March 3§,
2023 2022
Interest on lease liabilities 2.47 1.63
Expenses relating to short-term leases 11.12 872
Oepreciation relating to leases 11.98 4.34
Total 25.57 19.69

Amount of Cash Outflows for Lease repayments

Particulars

As at March 31,
2023

As at March 31,
2022

Total cash outfiow for feases

13.54

10.683




IFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
Ci: U4AS203MEE995PLCI28043

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

ote 17. Other Non Finandal Assets

(R in Crore)
As gt Aprit 3,
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022f  2021(Restated refer
note no:42))
Unsecured
Prepaid expenses 20,52 5.07 56.34
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 53 436 038
Employee advance agsinst expenses 081 0.03 0.01
O\hefs.(compnses of Capital Advance, balance with government 1318 0.5 0.60
autharity}
Total 41.24 10.11 57.33]
Note 18. Payables
As at April 1,
Particuars As at March 31, 2023 Asat March 31, 2022}  2021(Restated refer;
note no.42)
Trade payables - - .
-{l}Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(refer note no, 17,1}
~{li}Total outst»andmg dues of creditors other than micro enterprises s8.97 98,04 33.86
and srmall enterprises {refer note no. 17.2}
Total 69.97] 98,01 33.86
Other payables
-{i)Total eutstanding dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises - - -
~{il}Totel outstanding dues of creditors ather than micro enterprises 195 58 07.05 320,93
and smait enterprises
Total 395.58 S07.05 320.93

17.1. Disclosure under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The following disctosure is made as per the requirement under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2016 {MSMED) on the basis
of confirmations sought from suppliers oh registration with the specified authority under MSMED:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 33, 2022

Asat April 3,
2021(Restated refer
note no.42}

{a) Principal amaunt remaining unp2id to any supplier at the year end

{b} Interest due thareon rernaining unpaid to any supplier a2 the year end

{c) Aamount of interest paid and payments made ta the supplier beyond
the appointed day during the year

(d) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay tn making
payment {which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during
the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Act

{e) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the year end

{f) Amount of further interest femaining due and payable even in the
surceeding years, until such date when the Interest dues above are
actually paid to the small anterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Act

There are no amounts due ta the suppliers covered wnder Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. This information takes into
accaunt only those suppliers who have responded 1o the enquiries made by the Company for this purpose. This has been relied upon by the auditars. No

interest is payable in respect of the same.
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HFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U45201MH1955PLC228043

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR £ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 20. Other Financial Liabiiities

{Xin Crore}
As at April 1,
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 2021(Restated refer
neteno.42)
Payable to group companies (refer note no.36) 3.81 3.12 130.81
Advance from customers 4.99 - “
Others 0.53 G.40 0.09
Total 9.33 3.52 130.90
Note 21. Provisions:
(X in Crore)
As at April 1,
Particutars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 2021{Restated refer
note no.42}
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity 4.44 3.59 6.06
- Compensated absences 0.26 0.16 (0.01}
Total 4,70 3.75 6.05
Note 22, Other Non Financial Liahilities:
{% in Crore)
As at April 1,
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 2021{Restated refer
note no.42}
Statutory remittances 8.29 16.81 6.59
income received in advance 3.10 6.42 -
Others - 0.26 011
Total 11,39 23.49 6.70




IIFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: Ud5203MHISISPLC228G4S
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 23. Shara Capital:

X In Crore)]
{a)  The authosised, issued, subscribed and fuily pald up share capital comprises of equity shases having a par value of X300/- 35 follows:

Paniculars As 3t March 31, 2025 As 3t March 31, 2022 AsataprlL, ﬁ:ﬁ‘;]‘“‘*d feler note
Autherised : ‘VM,CIUO‘,UOO.tP‘Y 70,000,000) £quity shares of 7,00,00,000 200,00 7,00,00,000 760,00 7,06,00,000 700.00
X100/-each with voting rights
kssued, Subscribed and Pasd Up: 67,732,153 (P. Y.
6,77,12,i53 f 17,12,153 67712 6,77,12,153 212
§7,712,153) Equily shares of 1100/ each fully paid 677,12 6 2 67
Total §,77,12,153 6¥1.12 §717.12,153 67712 6,77,12,153 §77.12

{b}  Recondliation of the shares sutstanding at the beglnalng and at the end of the reponiing period.

As at Aprif 1, 2021{Restated refer note

Partlcutars As at March 31, 2023 As &t March 31, 2022 10.82)
bo. of shares % inCrore]l o, of shares Xin Crore| No. of shares X In Crore
At the beginning of the year 6,77,12,153 677.12 677,12,153 677.12 30,000 Q.30
Add: Issued during the year - - - - £,76,82,153 675.82
CQutstanding at the end of the year §,77,12,153 §77.12 6,77,12,153 §77.12 6,77,13,153 677.12

{c} Terms/eights attached to equity shares:
Yhe Company has only one cfass of shares referred to as equity shares baving a pur value of % 100/~ each. Each holder of equity thares is entitied to one vote per
share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directoss is subject to approval of the sharehotders in the ensuing Annuat Generat Meeting, exceps in tase of Interim

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 1o receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferentiat amounts. The cistribution will be in propertion to the number of equity shares held by the sharzholders,

e}  Details of shareholders holding mare than 5% shares after giving effect Lo the Composite scheme of arrangement {Refer nate 3):
As at March 31, 2023 As ot March 31, 2022 As atAprl 1, 202Restated rafer note
Particulars o4}
No. of shares % of tatal Shares No. of shares | % of total Shares| Mo, of shares % of total Shares
360 ONE WAMVLntmted(F.o{merly known as lIFL Wealth 6,77,12,153 100.0% 671,12,152 100.0% 6,77,12.153 100.0%)
Management Limited} & its norninees

{f)  During the period of 5 years immadiately preceding the Ralence Sheet date, the Company has not issugd any equity shares without payment being received in cash, bonus shares
exteps for shares issved under the composite scheme of arrangement and has not bought back any equity shares,




[IFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CiN: J45201MH1995PLC228043

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Shareholding of promoters

Shares held by promaoters at the end of the year

As at March 31, 2023 % Change during
the year
S.No Promoter name No of shares % of total shares
1 360 ONE WAM.er.mted (F.Grmerl\'r known as |IFL. Weaith 6,77,12,153 . .
Management Limited) & its nominees 100% 0%
Sharas held by promoters at the end of the year
As at March 31, 2022 % Change during
the year
S.No Promoter name No of shares % of total shares
1 360 ONE WAM Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Wealth
Management Limited) & its nominees 6,77,12,153 100% 0%
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
As at April 1, 2021{Restated refer
note no.42}
5.No Promoter name No of shares % of total shares
i 360 ONE WAM Limited {Formerly known as HFt Weslth

Management Limited) & its neminees

6,77,12,153

100%




HFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U45201MH1995PLC228043
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 24. Other Equity: {Xin Crore)

Asat April 1,
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 2021(Restated refer

note no.42j
Securities premium 26.72 29.72 29.72
Capital reserve {0.36) {0.36) {0.36)
Retained earnings 68.83 26.22 66.73
Total 95.19 55.58 96.09
Note:.

Securities Premium

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities premium reserve and share issue
expense is adjusted

Capital Reserve

i mainly represents the excess of net assets taken, over the cost of consideration paid during demerger.

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or
other distributions paid to shareholders, if any.




HFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CiN: U45201MH1995PLC228043

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 25. Fees and Commission Income

{Xin Crore)
For the year For the year

ended March 31, | ended March 31,

Particulars 2023 2022
Distribution Fees 468,21 423.86
Commission Income 44.21 56.09
Manpower Service Fegs 15,54 11.25
527.96 491.20




H{FL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U45201MH1995PLC228043
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

tote 26. Other Income

{% in Crore)

particulars For the year ended March 31,| For the year ended March 31,
2023 2022

Interest Income 12,55 1C.19
Change in fair value of investiments - reatised 3.63 193
Change in fair value of investments - uarealised (2.19] .18
Profit on tancellation of lease &.004 818
Miscellzneous inceme 0.07 -

Total 14.06 14.47

# Amount is less than R8s, 1,00,000,
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§iFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U45201MH1995PLC228043

NOTES FORMING PARY OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 28. Impairment On Financial Instruments

(XinCrore)

Particulars

For the year ended March
31, 2023

For tha year ended March
31,2022

On financial instruments
measured at amortised
COSt

On financial instruments
measured at amortised
cost

On Trade Receivabie

0.31

0.06

Total

0.31

0.06




IIFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U45201MH1995PLC228043
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 29. Employee Benefits Expense

{Xin Crare)

pasticulars Forthe yearended | Forthe yearended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Salaries and wages 256.66 309.82
Contribution to provideny and other funds 7.08 6.14
Share based payments ta employees 13.60 13.50
Staff welfare expenses 551 5.02
Gratuity expense 1.87 2.26
Leave encashment Q.10 .16
Total 284.82 335.90




HIFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U45201MH1995PLC228043

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

29.1. Gratuity Abridged Disclosure Statement as Per indian Accounting Standard 19 {Ind AS 19) For the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulacs For the year ended March For the year ended
. 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Type of benefit Gratuity Gratuity
Country Ingia India
Reporting currency INR INR
Indian Accounting Fdian Accounting
Reporting standard Standard 19
Standard 19 (ind AS 13) {ind AS 19}
Funding status Funded Funded
Starting period 01-Apr-2022 01-Apr-2021
Date of reporting 31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
12 Months 12 Months
Assurmptions
Expected return on plan assets 7.41% 6.96%
Rate of discounting 7.41% 6.96%
Rate of salary increase 7.50% 7.50%

Rate of employee turnover

For service 4 years and
below 15% p.a. &
thereafter 7.50% p.a.

For service 4 years and
beiow 15% p.a. &
thereafter 7.50% p.a.

Maortality rate during employment

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality
2012-14 [Uitimate}

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality
2012-14 [Ulitimate)

Table showing change in the present value of projected benefit obligation

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Present value of benefit obiigation at the beginning of the period 17.16 16.64
Interest cost 1,19 1.09
Cusrent service cost 1.62 1.84
Liability transferred in/ acquisitions 0.19 0.69
{Liability transferred out/ divestments} {0.37} {0.13)
{Benefit paid directly by the employer} {2.04} {1..06)
{Benefit paid from the fund} {1.19) {0.65)
Actuarial (gains)/fosses on obligations - due to change in i (0.01)
demographic assumpliong

f\ctua{nal {gams)/{osses on obligations - due to change in (0.56) (0.84)
financial assumptions

Actuarial {gains)/losses on obiigations - due to experience 1.53 (0.41)
Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the period 17.53 17.16

Table showing change in the falr value of plan assets

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period 13.57 10.58
interest income 0.94 0.67
Contributions by the employer - 3.26
{benefit paid from the fund) {3.19) 10.65}
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income {0.23) {0.31}
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period 13.09 13.57
Amaount recognised in the balance sheet As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
{Present vaive of banefit obligation at the end of the period} {17.53) (17.16)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period 13.0% 13.57
funded status {surplus/ (deficit}} {4.44) {3.59)
Net {liabikty)/asset recognised in the balance sheet {4.44) {3.59)

Net interest cost for current period

For the year ended March

For the year encled

31,2023 harch 31, 2022
Interest cost 1.19 1.09
{interest income) {0.94) {0.67)
Net interest cost for current period 0.25 0.42




HFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U45201MH1895PLC228043

NOTES FORMING FART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

I ) . For the year ended March For the year ended
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit or loss for curcent perigd 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current service cost 152 1,84
Net interest cost 0.25 0.42
Expenses recognised 1.87 2.26

Expenses recognised in the other comprehensive income (0C!} for current perdod

For the year ended March

For the year ended

31,2023 March 31, 2022
Actuarial {gains)/losses on obligation for the pericd 0.97 (2.27)
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income 0.23 .31
Change in asset ceiling - -
Net lincome)/expense for the period recognised in OCI 1.20 {0.96}
Balance sheet reconciliation As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Opening net liability 3.59 6,05
Expenses recognised in statement of profit or loss 187 2.16
Expenses recognised in OCI 1.20 {0.96}
Net liabitity/|asset) transfer in 0.19 0.69
Net (fiability}/asset transfer out [0.37) {G.13)
{Benefit paid directly by the employer) {2.04) {1.06)
{Employer's contribution) - {3.26)
Net liability/{asset) recognised in the balance sheet 4.44 3.59
Other details As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Na of active members 641 587
Per month salary for active members 6.52 5.44
Weighted average duration of Projected benefit obligation 10.00 9.00
Average expected future service 8.00 9.00
Projected benefit obligation - -
Prescribed contributicn for next year {12 months) 6.19 0.21
Maturity analysis of the benefit payments As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
1st following year 1.63 1.56
2nd following year 1.60 1.45
3rd folfowing year 158 145
4th following year 1.57 1.43
Sth following year 1.54 1.43
Sum of years 6 to 10 7.59 6.92
Sum of years 11 and above 18.13 18.14
Sensitivity analysis As at March 31, 2623 As at March 31, 2022
PBO on current assumptions 17.53 17.16
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of discounting {117} {1.20}
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of discounting 1.32 1.37
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of salary increase 0.64 0.70
Defta effect of -1% change in rate of salary increase {0.63) {0.58}
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of employee turnover 0.29 0.21
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of employee turnover {0.33) {0.23)




HFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: UA5201MIE1995PLC228643

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 30, Other Expensas:- T In Crore}
For the year ended For the year ended

Particutars waren. 31, 2023 wlarch 31, 3022
Cperations and fund management expenses 5.45 3.20
Rent and energy cost 1328 10.33
lasurance 213 B.51
Repairs 8 maintenance 1.58 1.49
Marketing, advertisement and business promotion expenses 2324 20.46
Traveling & conveyance 11.17 6.64
Legat & professional fees 7.80 7.32
Campmunication 242 1.96
Software charges / Technelagy cost 19.57 13.73
Office & other expenses 11.68 7.92
Remuneration to Auditors :

Audit fees (Net of G5T input credit) 0,11 0.14

Lertification expenses - 0.02
Lorperate sociai responsibility expenses & donation {includas doration CYi% 0.34 Croze and PY: %
9.54Crore] reler note no.41 0.75 0.87
Bank Charges Q.07 0.27
Printing & Stationary 0,65 0.42
Total 98.00 84.68




HFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMEYED
CEN; UAS2G1IMHL995PLC2280A3
NGOTES FORMING PARY OF FINANCIAL STATEMENRTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Maote 31 Income taxes
Disclasure pursusat to lnd AS 12 "Income Taxes”

la} Major components of 1ax expente/ (income)
% in Crore)
For the year For the year
ended March 31, § ended March
51, No, Parliculars 2023 31, 2622
Statement of Profit and Loss:
(a} Prolit and Loss section:
{i] Current income tax :
Cuerent incams tax exgenss S50 -
Tax expanse In respect of carlier years - -
550 -
{4i} Deferred Tax:
Tax expense on origimation and reversal of temporary differences 1962 {1251}
Effect on deferred 1ax batancos due to tha change in income lax rate - .
10.62 (1t.51)
income tax expense reported In the statement of profie or loss [(H{iE)] 2952 (12.51)
{b) Other Comprehensive income {GCI} Section:
{i} tems ot to be reclassified ta profit or {oss in subsequent periads;
{A) Current 1ax expense/{income}:
On re-messureraent of defined benefit plant - -
{B] Deferred tax expensef{incamel;
On re-measurement of defined benefit plans 0.30 L)
Income tax expense reported in the ather comprehensive income [{i}+{l)) 030 £0.2d}
b} Rerontiliation of Income tax expense snd accounting profit muitiplied by domestic Lax rate applicable in India:

(% in Crore)
For the year For the year
ended March 31, [ ended March

Sr. Ne. Particulars 023 31, jo12
(3) Profit/iass befare tax 98.63 §53,74)
b} Inconne Lax expense at ax rates applicable Lo individual entities 24.82 (13.52}
[(3] {i! Tax on Income subject o lower fax rate - N
{A) Gains on investrants {including fair valyation} {0.05) 0.05
{il] Tax on expense not tax deductible - z
{A) Expenses ngt aliowable as tax deductible as per tax laws 1.05 0.24
{iii] Tax effect on various ather iterns. w0l 0.72
Tatal elfect of tax adiustments £[1] 1 [ii}) 030 1.0
id) Tax expense recopnised during the year 25.12 412.53}%

Effective tax rate 25.47% 23.21%




HFLWEALTH DISTRIBUTEON SERVICES LIMITED
Clee: 45201MH1995PLCI2B043

NOTES FORMING FART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 32, Earnings Per Skare:

Basic and diluted earnings per share ["EPS”] computed in accordance with INDAS 33 ‘Earnings per share”.

For the year ended

Far the yaar ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
BASIC

Profit/{Loxs) after tax as per statemant af profit and Jass before Other Comprehensive A

lincome 73,51 [41.23)
Weighted average number of shares subscribed 6,77,12,153 6,77,12,153
face value of equity shares (in T) lully paid 100,00 100.00
Hasic £05 () AfB 10.86 {6.09}
DILUTED

Profit/{Loss} after tax as per statement of profit and toss before Other Comprehensive A 73.51 41.23)
}Income

{Welghted average number of shares subscribed B 5,77,12,153 6,77,12,153
Add: Potentlat equity shares on account of conversion of gilutive instrument L] - -
Welghted average number of shares outstanding D=0+C 5,77,12,153 6,77,12,153
Dityted £PS (1] AID 10.86 (6.09]




HFL WEALTH DISTRIBUITON SERVICES UMITED
Chhi: LAS201MH 1395 PLC22B043

BOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENYS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Hota 33, Disclosura Pursgant to ind AS 107 Fisencisd Instruments: Dirclosures™

Flanncixl Risk Mensgamant

334, Credit Risk

Credul risk relers to risk that 3 counterparty will defacit on Its contractual abligations resulting in financial loss 1o the Company. Credit risk

halow:

13 Tra

and othar recajvables

on varioys is

The Company's teade recelvables primarily inciude receivablas from mutyal funds, altemative invessment funds on account of distibution business, mENpower servicat and broking operaitom,
The company has made lifetime gapected credil oy provision bated on provislan matax which takes into acsount histarical experlente ln coilection and credit lasses,

E:] Others

in addition 1o the abova, balancas and deposils with Banks, investmants, loans, other receivabites and other financiol assete a5 have KpOSUA to eredit risk,
Eredit risk on batances and gepositg with banks is hmited as these batances are goneraily held with banks with high credit ratings andfor with capital adequacy ratic above the preseribad

regulatory {fmits

Creclt Risk on Cthes recelvables and Other Fisancial astets is contidered vary low a3 the counterparty It majnly stock exchinges.
Tha credit risk in raspect of Invastments clatatfied a3 Fair Value thraugh Profit ar Lass 15 priced In tha fair valus of the respective inssroments,
Tha credit risk on [0ang are considered low as the countespartias ars stalf 2nd the group companies.

338, Uguidity Risk

Uguldity risk refers to the risk thal the Company may not be able 1o meel ity shart-term financiat obiigations. The Company manages liquidity zisk by maintalning tullicient cash and marketable
securities &nd by having access to funding through an adequate amount of credit lines. Further, The Company has wel defined Sscet Liability Management [AtM) Framework with 2n appropeiate
organizational struzlure to regulacy mentiar and tranage matusity prafiles of financial assets and Enancal Habifities lachuding debt finandng plans, cash and cath equivalens instruments to
#nsure liquidity, The Company soeks to maintaln Hexibilily in funding mbc by way of sourcing the funds thriough money markels, debt markets and banks 10 meet lly husiress and liquidity

ragquirements.

1% ln Crorw}
The falicwing tabis shows the meturity profile of Financh fisbiitles:
As at March 3, 200
Hranclal iabillsiss Totat Less than 1 manihy 1 months 19 6 month & months to § year
Gerivative linanclal insiruments . - R N
Trace Payables £9.57 £397 = -
het payablss 39558 ;

Borrawings (O1her than Debt Secutiticn) $31.34 - 33138 -
Qthet financial Habiifey .33 - 933 -

Y] §06.22 £8.97 53538 -
Far Fingnce Lease Obkgation maturlly reier note 16

Ax w1 March 31, 2022
Financisl linbititee Tots! East than 1 months 1 months in & manths 6month to ] yeur,
Trade Payahiar 8305 3134 10.87 -
Other payables 507.05 S 507.05
Borrowings {Other than Debt Secusities) 43038 . 43038 :
Other financist Habilities 152 . 3.52 -
Totsf 1,033.96 2734 1.01§.62 -
Forf Finanee Lease Ghfigallon malurity refer naie 36
Aa 28 Apzif 1, 2071 {Restated rafar nols na.d2}

#Inancial Habiiiilas Taiml Laas than § smanths 1 imontha 1o 6 monaths Smonthsio) year
Trade Fayables 33.86 5.08 28.76 +
Other payabler 32023 : 32093 )
Other financial liabiliries 130.50 - 13050
Totel 495.69 5.08 48061 -

Fur Finence Lease Obligation maturity tefer note 16

23C Mwrist Flsk

Market thshis the risk of any 1033 In future carnings, in reatisable (ic values or In Tutur et cash llows that may result from & changa in the price of 3 financa] instrument.

A5C1 Currancy Rlsk

The Company daes not rwe 3 propeietary trading position in foreign currencies and foreign currency denominated Instruments. However the Company has exposiire 1o forcign currencles an
aucaunt of maintafning canh #nd cash equivalents ang deposits with banks in curcencies other than reporling Hunctlanal currencies.

¥ Far the year ended March 31, 2033

Particulars UsQ HKD: AED 560 THE
Cash ant cash nquivalents £.01 - . - B
PY For the year anded March 33, 7027
Pasticutart ;_Qm Jrse: [agp fsGD Teen |
h 001 g.00¢] 000k} Y| ]
F3C.2 tnrwrmst ratu risk
The Company has mewesured interest rate sk rensibity on financil assets and Uablities on Bnanial | foron cocl basis.

lince the borrowings/ioans guistanding 23 at March 31, 2013 and a5 t March 31, 2022 are 3¢ fixed imierest ate, hence oo interest rats risk analysis has been perlormed by the Management.

33C.3. Othar Price R1s% {inciuding Equity Linkad Invasimanis}

Other price fisk Is related 10 Lhe change in market relerence price of tha Investiments which #ie faif valued and axpases Lhe Company to price rsky.
The carrying smaunt of financlal assets arrd liablfities subject 1o price risk is as balaw:

i%in Crore)
P i) As at Murch 33 2023 A3 at March £1, 1021
Einsncial Acieqg
Invesimenty 0323 15575
033 155.7¢
Flnanclal abkitles
Borrowings fothyr than debt securities) 131,34 43038 |
3L.34 438,38 |
A hypotheticat 100 basks point shifl in the benchmark rale will have impact on the profit and i5s7 83 belo:
As 3t March 33, 2023 As 3t March 31 2022
3313 pal
émpact on Profit and Loss afer tax 0.00W 112
impuct on Equity 0.00N 112
(n‘ooul (117}
(0,008, 17




HFL WEALTH DISTRBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
IN: U4520IMHLZISPLCI 03

HOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
4D, Caplisd Manspemant

Tha Campaay’s capital management is nlanded to create value for sharehalders. The assessment of Capital lavel and requirements are sssested having regard w fongrand short Letm strategies

af 1he Company and regulelary caphal requiremants of (15 businesies and conatituent entitles,

. Colagory Wize Crantilcatian for gpplicybie Finandal Aagets snd Linkilities % in Crore}
SrNo. Particufars
Ax i Mazch 31, 2023
Mansurad st Tule viids Muasurad 2 falr velua
Measirad at amarnisad through sther
through profit or Total
cost sonlP/l} cetnpiehensive incoma
o ot
Financial Aszets
Cash and cash gouivaients § ﬂt— - - nag
(b) rk balance other than (3] aboye 283 - - 21133
(c} ?:_u,mhm I
{1} Trade receivabl 137, N -
2 i) Gther Jvabl 128 37 -
id} Loang 2.35 - -
(e} [ p— B 023 -
1) Other Kingncipl 351243, PRI .
Totsl 280.5), 0.23 .
An) Liabltias
fa) xyabisy
#}Teade payabley
(i} tetal eurstanding dues of micro enterprises ang .
Amailenterocises
1) 1otal sutsianding dues of creditars olhes than micro £9.97 . - £5.57
gnisrolsea andsmal eoterpriyes
{1} Qther payables
i) aotal outstanding duax of micro enterprises and - -
smglf
{i} sotaf pulstending dues of creditors othgr than micro 335,53 - - 395.58
ind small enternt
ib) Firunce Loase Obligallons 31.79] - ) .71
{c) regwings (orhe than debt securitiss] 131,34 - : EIRLE
d] Other financiat Dabfitley 93 - : 9.331
Yotal 639.01 | N £39.61
$r Mo, L At &1 Marsh 31, 3022
Maasurad at fair velue | Massurad st fair vilue | Totsl
Wiansurad at amartisad {through prafit or hrough sther
ant losstP L) campruhantly (ngore
loci
Financla) Avsats
) Cash and cath squivilents 35.74; - 35.74
) Bank balance olher than {a} sbove 53168 - 531168
feh, .
i1} Trade seceivables 9830 - - Jg90
(I} Other recatvables 24011 - 240,31
d| Laans 0.5€] 0.55
{e) investments - 155.74 - 155.74
Other financiat gesets 1900 - 19001
Total 108710 155,74 - Liszed
Fleanclyiijublifiiey =
{a} Payzbles
1371 rabjes
[l tatal citstanding duer of micro enterprises and - - -
smallenternises
1l 1otal outstanding dues of creditgrs osher than micro 96.01 - 29,01
21} Qther payables
1) total cutstanding dues of micro enterprizes and - - -
small anternrices
(i} total sutslanding dues of credilors alher than micrs 507.05 - £07.05
ntecoriies and smalt
1] £inance Lagse Qbligations 1537 A : 15.27,
5] Bor{owingy {pther than debl secunties} 430 38) : - 43038 |
14} Qthe: fingndal liabllities 152 : - 3.5%
Totu 1,05¢.23 | - 1,054.23




EFCWEALTH QISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
TIN: LAS23IMHI995M 220043
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCLAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

SrNo. Partieutaes Ax wi Apth 1) 20%) [Restated refar nole no 42}
Mansursd at (alr valun | Mewsured ot Tair valus | Total
Massurnd wt amsentlsad | lhroygh profil or htough other
(=213 eta{PfL) comprehsnsive incoms
{OCH
Financisl Asssis
{a} Cash and cash equlfvalents 81.493] - . 2293
() Bank batence ethar than fa} above 53.05 - - 153,05
! Recelvables =
i] Tragds recelvablas 6615 - - £6.15
{1t} Cthor recaivables 47.16 - - 62.18
), Loans 545 : - 045
{n) investment - 9.73 - 023
iUl Other linaneial assety 14764 - - FLY R R
Tora] 7i7.33 223 H 21761 ;
Financlat Usbilitiss
iz} Payzhis
{1} Trade payatslas
{7} total uul:llndln; duss of micro enterprises and - - . -
small
(4} 1otal outstanding gues of creditors other than mico 3338 - - FER
antatprises and smalianterorives
{11} Cbet pavables
) 10tal putslanding dues of micra enterpsises and . - .
erall i
{1) zotat outstanding dues of creditars othas than micra 12093 . - 320,93
enlernrises andsmalt enteroraes
) Flnsnce Leass Ob q 12.97 3 L] 22.97 |
&} rrowings {orher than debit socuritiey) : - s -
{{d} Other financiaf iiabliities 43090, . x 130.50
Tols! 308.66 . 2 508,66

Financiel sysais measyred ot amoniiyed cosl:

The carrying amounts of trude receivablas, loans, advancer and cash and other bank balances are consldsced ta ba the same a5 thelr falr vatues dus to thelr shor, term nature.

Einanciy) Habiillies messurad st smorilead cost:

Yhe carrying amaunts of trade and cther payables are conydered to be the same 33 their falr values dur to their shoct term nature. The carrying ameunts of borrowings are censkderad ta be

appronimate tha fair value.

33E.1. Fais valuws of finenclal instrumante

The Company measures fair values using the lelowing fair value hisrarchy, which raltects the signiligance of the inputs Used in making the measurements.

=~ Level 1: Inpuls that ere quoled macket prices [unadjustod) in active markels Tar Idestical Instruments, This Inclizda NAVS of the schemes of mutual tusds.

+Level 2: Inputs other than guoted prices included within Level & that ara chservatie sither directly (L. as pricas} or indirectly {i.e. derived [rom pricas. This category indludtes instrumeats
valued using: quated matkel pricat in aclive markets for shmilar insrumenis; guoted arices (of identical of simiiar i ! rkets that 3 id tess than aclive; ar other valuation
technigues fn which ail significantinputs ate direcily o indirectly abservable from market dats.

—Leved 3t tnpits that 3re unobiervible. This categary includss alk intkruments Far which the valusion Technique Includes lnputs that sre not observable and the Unobiarvable Inpuly huu
sigedficant effect an the Inslrument's valuabien. This category Includes Inttruments that are valued bated on quoted prices for simitar i for which

or yssumplions are requited Lo relfect differances betwern 1he instiuments.




BFL WEALTH DISTATBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: UA5201MHISISPIC225043
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED AYARCH 31, 2023

[% 4 Crave]

{Finwncisl imstrumanis measurad at fair value
Recurring falr value measurements at 31,03.2073

Lavel ) Llovel 2 Level3 Total

Financis! Assars
irvestmenls in fquity Shares . - 0.33 .71
Totaf Assels B - 023 023 3

Fineactal instrumants smentuted wt fale vaiue Re<urring falr value measurements at 31.03.2022

Level § Levet? Lgvel 3 Tatal

Financlsl Assetr
jinvistments in Mutua) Funds 100.q8 - . 1004

tiavestmentt in debt recurilies . 55.03 . 5§5.03

trwestments in Eoully Shares A ; ©.34 0.23
\Tocal Asvats 4 Y o 15578

Fénandial dnstrununls massured ut Ilr vaben Recurring tair value At 01.04. 2021 |F d reler nots no.42)

Level ) Leval2 bovail Total

Flnarcint Asyets
investmants in £quity Shares - - 023 023
Ttnl Aszets - = £.23) 2323

Recondliation of Laval 3 faic value measyremants (% in Lrore]

Particuiars
A at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Opuning Batsnce 0.33 023
Tatpl gaing of boiams

- in profit or lass . N

Ctosing Balstsey 023 D013

32£. b Fairvalue of Minancisd assets and finsncial lisbiities maasucnd st smertised cost

Financle] Ausaty aad lisbititiac which are measered at As #1 March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2023 At W Aprid 1, 2021 {Axstated rafer niots na.42)
bedd cogt fur which fair velusy pre dlicleind
Cureying Vatup Faiz vVaiug Larrying Vajuy Fair valus Corpying Watye Falr Velus
Financisl Aseati
Cask gnd cach 846 £.40 35.74 35 Tk 29 87.92 |
Ejnt balance gthae than gbove 2313 21131 53168 531.68 55305 53,05
Recen
:1! Teade reces 137,36 132,36 98.90 98,50, §6.15 6615
1t} Other racefvabies 128.92 12892 240.11 240.11 6216 §7.16

Loang 215 115 066 0,66 845 0.45
Qthar financial assets 79137 232,77 55003 19001, 14764 142.64
Flamnc: Hltier
lei¥rade payvab)

{i} tota) cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and - - - - . -
arnall poterorises

(it} to1at outstanding due of creditors other than migro 69.97 69.97 saoi 28.01 EER] EEE- 1
i ang ymail it
L) Other payalles

b} total qutstanding dues of micra enlerprises andg - - . - -
smdilenterprises

{1 lota) outstanging dues of creditors olher than micrg 395 .58 395,58 507.05 507.05 31093 2120.9
2ReIRIES 2ad smalt i
Fina, ase Obligattans 3373 32.79 1527 1527 2297 1287
Borrowings {pthar than debt securitias) 13134 1133 430.38 430,35, - N
Other finendal Habilives 5.31 $.33 3.52 3.52 130.9C 130,50




IIFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED

CIN: UA5SZ0AMHA993PLE2 28043

NOTES FORMING PARY OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
Note 34. Capital, Other Commitments and Contingent Liabilities at Balance Sheet date:

Capital and Other Commitments

{% In Crore)
As at March 31, 2023 As 3t March 31, 2022
Particulars.
Comrmitments to contribute funds for the acquisition of groperty, plant and equipment and
intargible assets 25.57 0.25
!%‘utai 29.5% 9.25
contingent Liabilites
{%in Crore}
IPar:lcuIars As at Warch 31, 2023 As at March 3%, 2022
Bank guarantees {refer note 34.1} 230.94 136.84
Disputed incame tax demand {refer note 34.2} 0.37 Q.51
In respect of service tax matter in dispute 6,75 6.75
{Total 270.06 144,20

34.1 Fixed Deposits{excluding accrued interest) amounting to 131.59 Crore (Y. 2125 58 Crore) are pledged againss bank guaranteas.

34.2 Manag Wt beli that the ulti

oulcome of above matters will not have a materiai adverse impact on Its financial position, results of eperations ané

cash flows. In respect of above matlers, future cash outflows in respect of contingent liabilities are determinable only on receipt of judgements pending at various

authorities.

Note 35. The Company operates from and uses the premises, infrastructure and other facilities and services as provided to it by its Holding Company/fgraup
companies, which are termed as ‘Shared Services’. Hitherto, such shared sesvices consisting of administrative and other revenue expenses pald for by the Company
were allotated by the Holding Company. Further the Holding Company allacates such cost based on reasonable management estimates, which are constantly refined
in the Heht of additional knowledge gained relevant to such estimation.




HEL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED

CIN: U45201MH1995PLC228043

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 36. Related Party Disclosures:

3j List of Related Parties:

Nature of relationship

Name of party

Director/ Key Managerial Personel

Ms. Anu fain, Director

Mr. Yatin Shah, Director

Mr. Anirygha Taparia, Director

Ms. Mansi Shah, Comgany Secretary, w.e.f. March 22, 2023

Holding Company

360 ONE WAM Limited {Formerly known as HFL Wealth Management Limited)

Fellow Subsidiaries

360 ONE Prime timited {Formerly known as 1IFL Wealth Prime Limited}

360 ONE Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as 1IFL Asset Management Limited }

380 ONE lnvestment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited {Farmerly knowa as IFL investment Adviser
and Trustee Services Limited)

360 ONE Asset Trustee Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Yrustee Limited}

360 ONE Partfolio Managers Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Wealth Portfolio Managers Limited)

360 ONE IFSC Limited {Formerly known as IEFL Wealth Securities iFSC Limited)

tFL Wealth Capital Markets Limited {Formerty known as & & T Capital Markets Limited) {ItFL Wealth
Capital Markets Limited merged with 360 ONE Prime Limited w.e.f, 14th March 2023}

IIFL Wealth Altiore Limited (Farmerly known a3 IFi, Altiore Advisors Limited} {3FL Wealth Altiore Limited
merged with 360 ONE WAM iimited w.e.f. 3rd March, 2023)

360 One Foundation (Formerly known as [IFEW CSR Foundation)

360 ONE Private Wealth {Dubai} Private Limited {Formerly known as HFL Private Wealth Management
{Dubaij Limited}

360 ONE INC. [Formerly kagwn as I, Ing.}

360 ONE Asset Management {Mauritius) Limited (Formerly known as lIFL Asset Management (Mauritius)
Limited)

WFL {Asia) Pte, Limited #

IiFL Securities Pte Limited #

360 CONE Captial Pte. Limited (Formerly known as liFL Capital Pte. Limited) #

360 ONE Capital (Canada) Limited {Formerly known as liFL Capital (Canada) Limited)

MAVM Angels Network Private Limited {w.e.£. 15th November, 2022}

Other Related Parties*

Mr. Karan Bhapat

Kyrush Investments

Mrs. Ami Yatin Shah {Spouse of Mr. Yatin Shah)

Mr. Prakashchandra Shah {Father of Mr. Yatin Shah)

Yatin fnvestments

Mr. Nirmal Jain

Mrs. Madhu fain (Spouse of Mr. Nirmat Jain)

Mr. Mansukh fain and Mr. Ramesh Jain {Brother of Mr. Nirmal lain}

Mrs. Deepika Sarin {Spouse of Anirudha Taparia)

HFL Securities Limited

HFL Home Finance Limited

Kalki Family Private Trust

*The above list includes related parties with whom the transaction have been carried out during the year and previous year
# IIFL (Asia) Pte. Limited, BFL Capital Pre. Limited and IIFL Securities Pte. Ltd. have Amalgamated to become 360 ONE Captial Pte. Limitad {Formerly
known as J§FL Capital Pte. Limited) with effect from October 27, 2021




JIFE WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMEYED
TIN: UA520IMH1995PLI2 28043

NOTES FORMING PART OF FENANCIAL STAYEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013

Beate 36. Related Party Disclosures: {Cantinued)

b List of Transactions of the Growp with the related parties

tMes. Madhw Jain

{Xin Crore}
Halding Company |  Felfow Subsidiaries | Other Related Parties
Nature of Transaction Director/Key Total
Manageriai Person
{1€D Taken:
360 OME WAM Limited (Formerly known as IIFL - 1,893,500 - 1,893.50
‘Wealth Management Limited)* - 12.439.35) - - (243235
360 ONE Prime Limited [Formeriy known as IIFL - - 1,126.50 . 1,120.50
Wealth Prime Limitad} . . {465.00) . 1455.00}
10 Repaid:
360 DNE WAM Limited {Formerly known a5 #FL . 1,190.75 - - 2,150.25 |
Wealth Masagement {imited)® - {2,011,35) . . {2.0 1.35H
360 ONE Prime Limited (Formerly known as HEL - - 1,120.50 - 1,120.50
Wealth Prime Limited) - - {465.00) - {265.00}
(1. Given;
350 ONE WAM Limited (Formerly known as IIFL - 13.00 - - 13.00
Wealth Management Limited}*® - (797.83} N - {79703}
360 ONE Portfolio Managers Umited {Fermarly IIFL - - 304.00 104.00
i Wegith Portlolio Manapers |imited]* - : {io7.00) » {162.00)
360 ONE Prime Limited {Fermerly known as HiFL - - 69.0¢ - 69.00
Woealth Prime Limited# - - [110.00) - {1£0.00)
HED Recelved back:
360 GNE WAM Limited [Formerly known as LFL - 13.00 - - 13.00
fad)® N {797.03) . 1797.03)
360 ONE Pouh_sho MI"BL’E(!-LIT.!\II.E(; (Formerly liFt B i 102.30 . 103.10
Weaith Portiolia Managers Limited}¥ " T502.00] T T3502.60)
260 ONE Prime Limited {Formerly known as IIFL - . 68.00 - 639,00
'Wealth Prime Limited}* - - {110.00} - (110.00!
Armgunt received/ receivable on account of Transfe: of Revesue [Realisation of dektors post transfer of business:
350 ONE WAM Limited (Formerly known as WFL - 177 ] I | 177
lvealth Manazement Limited]® | - 1 [16.16]} - | e {16.15}
Feos Earned intluding Brokerage for servites rendered
0.01 - . - 0.0%
Mr, Yatin Shah (0,99 - - - {0.00}
0.41 - - - £.00
Ms. Anu Jain - - - -
0.00K - - - -
Mr. Arirudha Taparia h - . - b
360 ONE WAM timited (Formerly known as HiFL - - > -
Wealth Management Limited) - {0.25} - - {&h25)
360 ONE Capitad Pie. Limited fFonmnesly IIFL Capital - - 0.34 .34
Ple. Limited) - P {0.33) - 10.33)
L Securities Pte Limited - . 10.15} - {0,35)
I FEU UNE FVestmenT Adwiser ang TTusles Servicer
Limited {Formerly lifL Investment Adviser and - 132 L3z
Trustes Services Limited] - {107} - {1.07)
350 ONE Prime Limited {Formecly known as IFL . - 6.43 - 6.43
Wealth Prime Limited) - {4.43} - {a.43)
366 ONE Asset Management Umited [Formerly IIFL - ~ 2467 - 24.0%
Asset Management Limited}* - - (5.37] - {5.37
360 ONE Portfolio Managers Limited {Farmerly IIFL - - 17.86 - 17.86
Wealth Portfolio Mansgers Limited}* - - {0.01) - {0,01)
IIFL, Securilies timited - - - {0.01) 40.01)
iﬂFL Home Finance Limited - - - {0.16} {0.16}
- - - 0.00% 0.60
Mr. Karan Bhagat - - - *
- - - 2.36 0.16
Kyrush invesiments - - - [0.11} {011}
- - - 0.15 015
Mr. Nirmeal Jain - - - {0.05) 10.05}
- - - 0.01 2.01
Yatin Investments - . - {0.01) {0.01)
. - . 0.00H -
Kalki Family Private Trust - ~ - (0.0} {0.01)
- - - Q.00 0.00
*rs, Ami Yatin Shah - - l -
- . - 0.00] 0.00
Mr. Prakashehandra Shah - N - N
n z C.00# $.00
hr. Mansukh Jain - N - . -
- - - C.008 0.0¢
Mis. Deeptka Satin - - - - -
= - . 0.02 0.02




UFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
TN UASI0IMH1935PLC228043
NDTES FORMING PART GF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 36. Related Party Disclosures: {Continued)

Holding Company ;  Fellow idiaries | Other Related Parties
Natura of Transaction Biractor/Key Tatal
Managerial Person
Feas/Expenses ncuread/Relmbursed For Services Procured
360 ONE WAM Limited {Formerly knowe as €L . 877 - - 8.77
IWealth Manggement Limnited)® - {8.44] - N 8.34]]
360 ONE investment Adviser and Trustee Services B . 164 . 1.61
timited (Formery UL investment Adviser and
Trustee Services Limited}® - - {3.47) - {3.47}
Intergss ingome on O
560 OME WAM Limited (Formerly known as {IFL - - - - *
Wealth Management timited) : {1.04} : ; 12.04)
360 ONE Prime Limited [Formeriy known as SIFL - - .06 - 0.06
Waalth Prime limited)* - - {001} - {0.01}
36C ONE Pertfolio Managers Limited (Farmerly IIFL - - 1.36 - 1.36
Wealth Partfollo Managers Limited)s - - {6,159} - {0.19)
Interest Expanses on ICO:
365G ONE WAM thmited (Formierly known as (tFL - 12.40 - - 1240
Wealth Mansgament Limited)* - (12,06} : - 112.06)
360 ONE Prime Uimited (Formesly known az IIFL 172 172
Wealth Prime Limited) - - eRE ' 0.7
fvidend Pk

360 ONE WAM Limited [Farmerdy known as lIFL I -] 30.00 | - f - | 30.041

fth Mana i S| P | -1 B -

1 orial Responsibility(CSq |
360 ONE Foundation {Formely kiown as IFLW CSR | - | 0.39 | - 0.33
|Foundatipn) | - ] -1 (031} | §0.31}]
Allogation / Reimbursement of Expensas Paid:
368 ONE WAM Limited {Formerly known as $FL I | 9.54 | P | ] 9.54
Wealth Mansgement Limited]* | - i (36.80}[ e B {16.80);
enses i H
360 ONE Prime Limited {Formerly known as Ife, - . - B .
Wealth Zrime Limited} - - {0.09) " {198}
360 ONE Assel Managemant Limited {Farmerly - - . - -
known a3 IfL Asset Management Limited) - - {0.041 - 0.04)
[Other Funds Received:
360 ONE WAM Limited {Fermerly known as IIFL - 0.09 - ~ 0.09
Wealth Mapagement mited]* : {15.03} - : {15.53)
360 ONE Asset Management Limited {Formerly - - 0.16 - 0.10
known as 11fL Asset Management Limited) - - {0.00) - 0.0
360 ONE Investment Adviser and Truttee Services
Lisnited {Formetly lIFL Investment Adviser and - ~ - - =
Trustee Services Limited) - - (000} - (0.00)
360 ONE Prime Limited [Formerly known as JIFL - - 2.0% - 0.6¢
‘Wealth Prime Limited) - . - - .
360 ONE Portfolis Managers Limited (Formerly I1Fs. . d z h .
Wealth Portiolio Managers Limited) - - 0.03 - (0,03}]
Other funds paid
360 ONE WAM Limited {Farmerly known as lIFL - 131 83 - - 13.8
Wealth Mansgement Limited}* - (299.17) - : {293.17}
360 ONE Pzime Lirmited {Formesly known as HFL - - . . -
Weallth Prime Limitad) . - (0.03) . {0634
360 ONE Portfolio Managers Limited [Formerly SIFL - - 0.08 - 0.08
Wealth Portfokic Manapers Limnitediy - - (0.13} - {0.13}
360 ONE Asset Management Limited (Foemeriy IIFL - - 0.22 - 0,22
i - p [0.07] - [0.03)




1IFL WEALTH DISTRIBLUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U820 MHRI95PLC2 28043

NOYES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013

MNote 36, Related Party Disciotures: (Continued)

£} Amount dve to / from related parties {Closing $aance)

Motes:
1) Figuras in bracket represents previous year figures.

il} Aeiated parties are identified and cortified by the ranagement.
1} * includes transactions & balances with "IIFL Weaith Capital Markets Ltd" and *360 ORE Prime Ltd" {Formerly known as IIFL Wealth Prime £4d) pertaining to its

Distnbution Business which has demerged 1o IIFL Wealth Distribution Services {1d vide a G

Scheme of

Tribunaf, Mumtiai 8ench (*NCLT"}{erder date fanuary 27,2023 and effective date March 14, 2023]

I¥i# Amountiess than 85.1,00,000,

P

{%In Crora}
Huldlng Company | Fellow Subsidiaries | Other Relzted Parties
L
Nature of Transoetion z ::D:{:: ?;m“ Totat
] 13125 | - 1 - I 13125
- {428.001 1 - 1 1428.00)]
360 GNE Portfolio Managers iimiled [Formerly 1IFL - - 0.90 W .50
Wealth Portiolio Managers Limited)® - - - - -
fSundry Payables finciuding 1CD interest}
360 ONE investment Adviser and Trustee Services
timited {Formetly IIFL Investment Adviser and - - - - -
Trustee Services limited) - - {£.76) - {1.76)]
360 ONE WAM Limited (Formerly known as {iFL - 651 - - 651
[Wealth Maragement Limited) - {9.24) B 9.29)
Sundry Receivables [including ICD interagp}
350 ONE Investment Adviser and Trustee Services
Lienited {Farmerly IIFL Investment Adviser and - 0.01 - 001
Trustes Services Limited) - - Lg.33] - 1038!
360 ONE Asset Management Limited [Formariy IFL - - 7.39 - 7.39
|Asset Management Limited) - (5.83) - {5.53)
360 ONE Prime Limited {Formezly known as IIFL - 22.07 - 2247
Weaith Prime Liriled) - - {1.53) - 11.53)3
360 ONE Portfolio Managers Limited {Formeriy iFL 514 . 5.34
Wealth Portfolio Managers {imited} - - {4.98) - 14.98)
360 ONE IFSC Limited {Formerly IIFL Wealth Securities - - 0.02 . .02
I ff; fuedl - - {0.02} - (o.02)]
1IFL Securities Limited - - - {0.01) {0.08}|
HFL Home Finange Limited - - - (0.19) {919}
[Recatvabie fiom Client
Ami Yatin Shah - - - {0.005% {0.00}
- - - G.004 0.00
Kr, Mansukh fain {Brether of Mr. Nirmal Jsin) - - - N
Pavabla ta Client
0.004 - - 4.00
M. Yatir: Shab - - - - Z
Mr, Anitudha Taparia 2,13 - - : 213
360 ONE WAM Limited {Formerly known as #iFL - - + - -
|Weqith Managemgnt |imited} - {0.85) - - {0.85)
w - 5.33 - 533
360 ORE Portfolio Managers Limited [Fosineriy IIFL
Wealth Portiolio Managers Limited) . - (6.83} - {6.83)
360 QNE Prime Limited (Formesty known as UFl, - - 0.95 - 0.96
Wealth Pricne Lirmited) ~ - (LBOH - {1.50)
Yatin Investments - - - {1.49) {1.49)
- - - $.02 0.02
Kyrush Invesiments - - - {B.58) {8.58)
Mrs, Madhu fain (Spouse of Mr. Nirmal Jain) - - 0.004 0.99
Mr. Nirmal Jain - - 17.43 17438
Corparate Guarantee Received
3560 ONE WAM Limited (Formerly knawsn as BFL M 406,00 | R | 400.00
¥Wsalth Manapement Usited) -1 {400.00]| - 1 - (a00.00)
{%Jn Crore)
Particulars 2022-23 202822
Sataries and other employer benelits to whole time
directors and other KMPs 16.29 .14

J by National Company Law



#FL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CIN; A5 2010 H1995PLE22E043
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 36. Related Party Distiosures: Continued)

Note 37, Dther Statutory Information

{1} No proceedings have been initisted or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benam: Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1588 and rules
made thereunder, as at March 33, 2023 and March 31, 2027,

[i5) The Campany is not a declared witful defauiter by any bank or financiat Institution or other lender, In accardance with the guidelines on wilfu! defaulters issued by the
Reserve Bank of india, during the vear ended March 31, 2023 and March 33, 2022,

{iii} The Company does nat have any trantactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Gompanies Acl, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 956 during

the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,

(iv) There have been no transactions which have not been recorded in the books of accaunt, that have been surrendered or disclosed a5 income during the year ended
March 31, 2022 and April 1, 2021, in the tax assessments under the income Tax Act, 1962, There have been no previously unrecorded income and related assets which
were te be properly recorded in thes books of account during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,

{v) The Campany has not advanced of loaned or invested funds 1o any other person(s) or entltyliesy, including foreign entities {Intermediaries) with the understanding
{whether recorded i writing or otherwise] that the Intermediary shall:

(3} directiy or indirectly lend or invest in ather persans or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behzif of the Company {Ultimate Beneficiarigs} or
{b) provide any guaranter, security or the like to or an behaif of the Utimate Beneficiaries.
{vi) The Company has nat received any fund from any person|s) or entitylies), incleding foreign entities {funding #arty)

with the understanding (whether recorded in writing o otherwise] that the Company shall:

(a} directly or inditectly land of invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the
Funding Party [Ultimate Senaficiarios) or
{b] provide any puarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beraficlaries.

ivli} The Campany has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31,2092,
{witi) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is vet 1o be registered with ROC beyand the statutory period,

{ix} Considering that the Comparny is In the business of braking services, the analytical ratios related to Capitat to fisk Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR}, Tier | CRAR Tier Il
LRAR and Liguidity Coverage Ratias arc aot applicable,




HFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CiN: U45201MH1995PLC228043
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 38, Maturity analysis of assets and liabilitles as at March 31, 2023

{Xin Crore)
SR. Particulars .
No. Within 12 months After 12 months Total
ASSETS
1 Financlal Assets
fa)  |Cashand cash equivalents B.40 - 8.40
{bj Bank balance other than {a) above 207.81 3.50 211.31
[{4] Receivables
(1) Trade receivables 137.36 137.36
(81} Other receivables 128.492 " 128.92
1] Loans 1.44 0.721 215
{e} lnvestments B 0.23 0.23
{fi Other financiat assets 226.72 66.05 292.77
2 Mon-Financial Assets
{a) Current tax assets (net) - 54.21 54.21
(b) Praperty, piant and equipment - iB.48 1B.48
{c)  }intangible assets under development 31.82 - 31.82
(d) Goodwill on acguisition 370.18 370.18
(e} ]Otherintangible assets - 110,38 110.38
{1 |Right to use - 29.60 29,60
{g} Other non-financial assets 431,24 - 41,24
Total Assets 783.71 653.34 1,437,058
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
1 Financiat Lizbilities
&) Payables
{Trade payables
{i) total outstanding dves of micro enterprises
and smail enterprises ) i
[ii} total cutstanding dues of crediters other than 3 59.97
micro enterprises and small enterprises 69.97
{if) Other payables
(i} total sutstanding dues of micro enterprises
fand small enterprises - ) ’
{ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than ) 195.58
micre enterprises and smatl enterprises 395.58
{b} Finance Lease Obtigation 10.69 22,10 32.79
(c) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 131.34 - 131.34
{d) Other financiaf liabilities 9,33 9.33
2 Non-Financial Liabilities
{a} Provisions 4.47 0.23 4.70
1=} Deferred tax liabilities (net) - 9.63 9.63
ic} Other nan-financial liabilities 11.39 . 11.39
3 EQUITY
(a} Equity share capital - 677.12 677.12
{D} Qther eguity - 95.19 95.19
Total Liabilities and Equity 632.77 304.27 1,437.05




IIFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
TIN: U45201MH1995PLC228043
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 38. Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities As at March 31, 2022

% in Crore)
SR. Particulars .
No. Within 12 months | After 12 months Total
ASSETS
1 Financial Assets
(a} Cash and cash equivaients EL] S - 35.74
{h) Bank balance other than {a) above 507.30 24,38 531.68
{d) Receivables
{#) Trade receivables 98.90 - 98.9C
{Uj Other receivables 240.11 24011
{e) toans 0.38 0.28 0.66
{fi Investments S5.63 100.71 155.74
{g} Other financial assets 44,34 145.67 180.01
Fd Non-Financial Assets
b} Curvent tax assels (net} . 31.87 31.87
{c} Deferred tax assets {net) - 9.69 9,69
{d} Property, plant and equipment - B.42 B.42
{e) Capital work-in-progress - 012 0.12
) Goodwili - 37018 370.18
(g Other intangible assets - 118.05 118.05
{h} J&ight to use - 12.89 12.89
(i) Gther pon-financial assets 9.67 0.44 10.11
Total Assets 991.47 822.70 1,814.17
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
1 Financiat Liabilities
{a) Payables
{I}Trade payables
{i) total outstanding dues of micro i }
entesprises and small enterprises R
{ii) total outstanding dues of creditors
ather than micro enterprises and small " 58.01
enterprises 98.01
{1} Other payables
{i) total outstanding dues of micro a }
enterprises and small enterprises _
{ii] total outstanding dues of craditors
other than micro enterprises and smail . 507.05
enterprises 507.05
{b} Finance Lease Ghligation 1.73 7.54 15.27
{c) Borrowings {other than debt securities} 430.38 - 43038
{d) Other financial liabilities 3.52 - 352
2 Non-Financial Liabitities
{a) Pravisions 3.61 0.4 3.75
{b} Cther non-financial liabilities 23.49 - 23.49
3 EQUAHTY
{a) Equity share capitat . 0.30 0.30
(b} Equity share pending for altotment - 676.82 676.82
(c} Other equity - 55.58 55.58
Total Liabilities and Equity 1,073.79 740.38 1,814.17




HFLWEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U45201MH1995PLC228043
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 40. Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities As at Aprif 1, 2021{Restated refer note ne.42)

:: Particulars Within 12 months | After 12 months Total
ASSETS
1 Financial Assets
(a} Cash and cash equivalents 8293 - 82,93
{b} Bank balance other than {a) above 328.67 24.38 353.05
{c) Receivables
{} Trade receivables 66.15 - 66.15
{il} Other receivables £7.16 67.16
{d}  {tcans 0.17 0.28 45
{e} Investments - 0.23 .23
(3] Cthar financial assets 1587 145.67 147.64
2 Mon-Financial Assets
{(a) Current tax assets (net] - - -
{b) Property, plant and equipment - 11.63 11,63
{c) Capital work-in-progress . 162 1.02
{d} Goodwill B 370.18 370.18
{e} Other intangible assets - 126.93 126.93
{fy Right to use - 20.56 20.56
g} Other non-financial assets 56.89 0.44 57.33
Total Assets 603.94 701.32 1,305.26
LEABILITEES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES
1 Financiai Liabilities
{a} Payables
(J¥rade payables
(i} total cutstanding dues of micre
enterprises and small enterprises
{ii} total ourtstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and small - 33.86

enterprises 33.36
{tl) Cther payables

(i} tetai outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises

[ii} total autstanding dues of ereditors

other than micro enterprises and smalt - 32093
enterprises 320.93
b} Finance Lease Obligation 9.65 13.32 2297
[c} Other financial liabifities 130.90 - 130.9¢
2 Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Current tax liabilities {net} - 8.06 8.06
(b} Provisions 6.0% - 6.05
{ci Deferred tax hiabilities {net} 2.58 2.58
{d) Other non-financial liabilities 6.70 - 6.70
3 EQUITY
(a} Equity share capital - Q.30 0.30
{b} Equity share pending for allotment - 676.82 670,82
(c} Other equity - 96.09 96.09

Total Liabilities and Equity 508.09 797.17 1,305.26




HFLWEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: JA5201IMH1995PLC228043
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 33, 2043

Note 41, Corporate Social Responsibllity
During the year 2022-23, the Company has spent 20,43 Crore [PY £9.33 Croze). The Company is committed to supporting development of the country by

contributing in achieving sustainable development goals and all its activities are directed towards this. Going forward these projects will be consolidated and scaled
to achieve a larger and deeper impact. The key focus areas include education and healthcare inciuding COVID Refief. {Refer Note 36 on Related Party Distlosures}

{%in Crore)
Partlculars 2022 - 2023 2021 - 2022
Amaunt required to be spent by the Company during the year 0.41 0.33
Amount of expenditure incurred .41 0.33
Shortfall at the end of the year - -
Reasoen for shartfal! NA NA
Prevision of C$R - "
Nature of CSR activities tivelihood Livelhoods and Yvelihoods -
incubatar

The Company has met its CSR obligations through its feliow subsidiary 360 ONE Foundation {Farmerly known as LFLW CSR Foundation) except for administrative cost
booked at Company level. {Refer Note 36§

Note 42. Business combination

With an intent to consolidate and better manage operations & regulatary risks of the distribution business, 360 ONE Prime Limited(formatly known 35 IFL Wealth
Prime Limited) ["IWPL"), IiFI, Waaith Capital Markets Limited (IWCML"] and IFL Wealth Distribution Servicas Limited had entered into 3 Campasite Schemme of
Arcangement which was duly approved by National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench {"NCLT"}, vide its order dated tanuary 27, 2023 {"NCLT Order"} and
became effective on Margh 14, 2023 (“Effective Date™) upon filing with the Registrar of Companles, Mumbai.

iater alia upon the Scheme becoming eifective:

. FWCML as a company stood amaigamated with IWPL and dissolved w.e.f. Effective Date;

*  The entire Distribution business of IWCML and IWPL shall stand transferred to the Company from the effective date for 2l future pUrposes.

This being a cammon control business combination within the meaning of ind A3 103, the financial statements of previous reported periods are restated. The details
of the transaction and restatement are given below:

Partlculars X in Crore
Nat Assets transferred £76.82
Equity Share Capital { 67,682,153 equity shares ® 200 sach)

676,82

The shares issued pursuant 1o the said scheme is shawn as Equity Shares pending aliotment and were considered while calculating earnings per share for previous
reporting periods. The said shares have now being afioted during the year ended March 31,2023,

The Company has also acquired Gaodwill due to this disribution business transfer amounting to X 37¢.18 Crore from IWPL. IWPL had previously accouated for this
goodwill on agceurt of slumpsale of distribution business from 360 ONE WAM Limited {formerly known as IIFL Wealth Management Limited] and zlsa acquisition of
its subsidiary IWCML.

The zppainted date of the aforesaid scherne is April 1, 2021, The effect of the scheme Aas beeen given to the Balance Sheet as on April 1, 2021,




HFL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
£IN: U45201MH1395 FLC228043
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

The effect of such transfer on the Statement of &alance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 and Profit and Loss for the year endad March 31, 2622 is as below:

{€in Crore}
Particulars Ag at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2022
Restated Previously published
ASSETS
1 Financial Aszets
(a) Cash and cash eguivalents 3874 3.26
{iz) Bank bafance other than [a) abave 53168 531.68
{c) Receivables
{!) Trade receivables 98.30 ic.74
{4) Other receivables 24011 240586
{d} Loans 0.66 c.43
(e} Investments 15574 190,71
if} GCther financial assets 190,01 135.40
i Non-Financial Assets
{a} Current tax assets {net) 3i.87 .35
by Deferred tax asseis {net) 5.69 -
(3] Property, plant and equipment 842 .01
{d) Capital wark-in-progress 0.12 .12
e} Goodwill on acguisition 570.18 -
if Othec intangible assets 118.05 262
{8 RIght te use 12.89 0.20
{h) Other nen-financizl assets 1011 3,85
Tatal Assets 1,814.17 1,031.93

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES
1 Flnangiat tlabifities
{a) Payables

{I)Trade payables

{i} total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and smail enterprises - -

{ii} total outstanding dues of creditars
other than micro emterprises and small
enterprises 98,01 6.34
(1) Cther payables

{i} total outstanding dues of micro

enterprises and small enterprises . -
{ii) tatal outstanding dues of credizors
other thar: micra enterprises and small

enterprises 507.05 507.28
{b} Finance Lease Gbligation 1527 0.21
tc) Berrowings {cther than debt securities) 42800 42808
3] Other financial liabifities 590 243
? Non-Financial Liabilities
{a} Current tax Habilities {net) - 370
(b} Provisions 315 0.02
{c) Daferred tax lisbliities (net) - 0.52
{d) Other nan-financizl lizbilities 23.49 3.75
3 EQUITY
{a) Equity share capital 0.30 30
18] £quity share pending for allotment 676.82 -
{c} Other equlty 55,58 81.26

Total Liabiities and Equity 1,814.17 1.031.93




{IFLWEALTH DISYRIBUTION SERVICES LIMITED
CiN: U45201MHIS95PLC228043
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENYS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Particulars

For the year ended March 31,

For the year ended March 31,

2022 2022
Restated Previously published

b Revanue from operations
{a} Fees #nd commission income 491,10 7102
Total revenue fram operations 491,20 7102
2 Cther income 14.47 8,98
3 Total Income {142 505.67 80.08
Expensas
{a) Finance costs 18.01 1833
(b) feas and cOMMIssion expenses 96.43 c.a7
{c) impairment on fingncisi Instruments 0.06 -
{d) tmployee benefits expense 336.90 34.19
(3] Depreciation, amortisation aad impairment 23.32 G35
{n Others expenses 84.68 3383
4 Total expenses 559.40 64.48
H Profit/{Loss) before tax (3-4) {53.73) 15.52
6 Tax expense:
(a} Current tix - 3.62
{bj Defarred tax (12.51} 112
T Profitf{Loss) for the year (5-6) {41.22} 10.78
8 Other comprehensive Income/{loss}
{a} {i) Hemns that will not be reciassified to profit or Joss
- Remeasuremeits of Employge Banefits 0.96 {c.18)
{ii) Incoma tax relating to items that will not
be reclassified to profit or loss 19.24) 404
Subtotaf {a) [ Al {9.12)
{i} ixems that will be reclassified to profit or
- foss
Subrotal {b) - .
Other camprehensive income/{loss) (a+b) 0.71 (0.12}
Total comprehensive income/{ioss) for the
9 vear {7+8} {Comprising toss and other
compreheasive incoma for the year) {30.51) 10.66




FL WEALTH DISTRIBUTION SERVICES UMITED
CiN: VAS20AMHA995PLL22B043
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENES FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

HNote 43. Segment Reporting

The Company's main business is distribution business comprising of, inter-alia, broking and distribution of finsncls! products and all revslve around the same. all
activitias of the Company are carried out in India. As such there are no separate reportable segments a3 per the [adian Accounting Standard 108 {IND AS 108} on
Operating Segments.

Note 44, Subsequent Events
There were no subsequent events fram the date of financial statements till the date of adoption of accounts.

Note 45. Approval of Financlal Statements
The financial statements were approved for issuance by the Board of Directors on May 03, 2023.

Nate 46. Previous year figures are regrouped wherever ronsidered nacessary ta confirm to current year's prasentation.

*
¢ 3%d on behal of the Board of Dlrectors \,,

And Jain
Director
{DIN: £2001502}

-

'pama 8 an Mansl Shah
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
(ACS 29280}

Place : Mumbaj
Dated: May 03, 2023




